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1. Business Results for FY 2012 (January 1, 2012=tebber 31, 2012)

(1) Operating results (Percentages indicate year-on-year changes.)

Net sales Operating income (loss) Ordinary income (loss) Net income (loss)
Millions of yen % | Millions of yen % |Millions of yen % [Millions of yen %
FY 2012 1,955 3.9 (1,700) - (1,729) - (1,733) -
FY 2011 1,882 29.8 (2,066) - (2,095) - (2,104) -
. . Ratio of net | Ratio of ordinary|Ratio of operatini
Net income (loss) per sh3 reDIIUted r;(re];lgcome PE 1 income (loss) to| income (loss) to| income (loss) to|
equity (ROE [total asset (ROA) net sale
Yen Yen % % %
FY 2012 (90.60) - (30.2) (27.1) (87.0)
FY 2011 (143.60) - (39.4) (36.4) (109.8)
(ReferenceEquity in earning FY 201z - Millions of yer FY 2011 - Millions of yer
(2) Financial position
Total assets Net assets Equity ratio Net assetshare
Millions of yen Millions of yen % Yen
FY 2012 5,502 4,899 88.6 254.71
FY 2011 7,256 6,605 91.0 345.28
(ReferenceNet assets excluding subscription rights to sh
FY 201: 4,872 Millions of yer FY 2011 6,60t Millions of yer

(3) Cash flows

Cash flows from operatingCash flows from investin&;Cash flows from financing Cash and cash equivalents
activities activities activities at the end of the year
Millions of yen Millions of yen Millions of yen Millions of yen
FY 2012 (1,658) (410) (0) 4,240
FY 2011 (2,074) (117) 4,610 6,310




2. Dividends

Annual dividend per share Ratio of
P Total dividends | Payout ratio| dividends to
1st quarter 2" quarter 3rd quarter [Fiscal Year Engl  Full year net assets
Yen Yen Yen Yen Yen | Millions of yen % %
FY 2011 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 0 0.0 0.0
FY 2012 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 0 - 0.0
FY 2013 (Forecast) - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 -

3. Earnings forecasts for FY 2013 (January 1, 2613ecember 31, 2013)
(Percentages indicate year-on-year changes.)

Operatin Ordinar . Net income (loss
Net sales incg)me (Iogs) income (Igss) Netincome (loss) per shar(e
Millions % Millions % Millions % Millions % ven
of yer of yer of yer of yer
Full Year 1,927 (1.4)| (1,889) -1 (1,922) - (1,926) - (81.03)

Notes:
(1) Changes in Accounting Policies, changes in atibog estimates and restatements after error doyrec

(a) Changes in accounting polices due to revision\?f
. es
accounting standards:

| No

b) Changes in accounting polices due to other
(b) g gp ves | No

reason:

(c) Changes in accounting estimates: Y-¢s\No

(d) Restatements after error corrections: Y¢No

(2) Number of shares outstanding (Common stock)
(i) Number of shares outstanding at the end|of
the year (including treasury stock)

FY 2012 19,130,90shares] FY 2011 19,130,900sharg¢s

(ii) Number of shares of treasury stock at the
end of the year
(iil) Average number of shares during the year 1) 7

FY 2012 7tshares| FY 2011 75 shares

19,130,82shares] FY 2011 14,655,716sharg¢s

(Note) Refer to “Per share information” on Pagee@Onumber of shares that forms the basis for catimg net income (loss) per
share.

* The status of the annual audit
The audit of financial statements as required leyRimancial Instruments and Exchange Act is praogeaks of the date of this
disclosure document.

*Explanation regarding the appropriate uses ofiegemforecasts and other matters
(Notes on the forward-looking statements)
All forecasts presented in this document includdagnings forecasts are based on the informatiaetly available to the
management and the assumptions that we judge @alsorctual results may differ substantially frtimese forecasts due to
various factors. Regarding the assumptions on wthietearnings forecasts are based and its usagsepiefer to “Business
results analysis” on Page 1 of the attachment.
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1. Business results
(1) Business results analysis
(Business Results for FY 2012)
Progress in the Company’s business for FY 2012 fsliows:
(i) Domestic
[SyB L-0501 (the generic name: bendamustine hydouitte, the trade name: TREAKISYR
Since December 2010, the Company has been sellingtamancer drug SyB L-0501 in Japan through thénlkess partner
Eisai Co., Ltd. (Eisai) for the indications of reftary/relapsed indolent non-Hodgkin's lymphoma (NHind mantle cell
lymphoma (MCL).

The Company has been engaged in three separatmacttiials with TREAKISYM® for extended indicationSor one of
them, the Phase Il clinical trials (collaborativialtin Japan and South Korea) of refractory/redapaggressive non-Hodgkin's
lymphoma. The Company completed analysis and evaluation oflthieal trial data. However, based on the resoita pre-
application meeting with the Pharmaceuticals andiv# Devices Agency (PMDA), we decided to susptredapplication
for approval of the product we had planned to makee fiscal year under review.

The Phase Il clinical trials were conducted at&$lities in total in Japan and South Korea forfpeaited patients of
refractory/relapsed aggressive non-Hodgkin's lympapwith the aim of confirming the efficacy andetgfof SyB L-0501
when co-administered with rituximab. Sixty-threeigats were enrolled for the trials, and 59 caseevsubject to analysis.
The trials showed high efficacy, resulting in ap@sse rate of 62.7%, of which the complete remissite was 37.3%.
Moreover, the median value of the progression $tewival (PFS) period reached 200 days, indicatiegpossibility of
improved prognosis for patients suffering from aefory/relapsed non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma. The sidect$ were clinically
manageable, and the drug proved to be applicablaécelderly.

Detailed results of the trials were presented @timerican Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO), h&ldChicago in June
2012, by Dr. Michinori Ogura of Japanese Red Crogola Daini Hospital.

In addition, presentations were also made on thatseof the trials by Dr. Kensei Tobinai of Natabi€ancer Center
Hospital and several other doctors at the 74th AhMeeting of the Japanese Society of Hematolodyy ineKyoto in
October 2012.

The Company will decide on the future developmefitp®f the drug against this indication througisalissions with
Eisai, our business tie-up partner.

We continued the enrollment of patients for thedehihclinical trials for the indications of untted indolent non-
Hodgkin’s lymphoma and mantle cell lymphoma, whie humber of enrolled patients reaching one pat@&maining to the
targeted number 67 as of the end of December 284 for the Phase Il clinical trials for the indiiat of refractory/relapsed
multiple myeloma, the number of enrolled patients@ased to 17, with the target number of patieeisg 44, as of the end
of December 2012. Moreover, our notification of tiaical trial plan for domestic Phase Il clinidakls for the indication of
chronic lymphocytic leukemia had been preparedvemsiaccepted in December 2012. Furthermore, TREAKIS¥as
designated as an orphan drug (pharmaceutical ferdiaease treatment) for the indication of chrdyrigphocytic leukemia in
June 2012.

[SyB L-1101 (the intravenous form)/C-1101 (the domim) (the generic name: rigosertib)]

With regard to SyB L-1101, an anticancer drug, aatification of clinical trial plan for Phase | cloal trials for the
indication of refractory/relapsed myelodysplastindrome (MDS), a type of blood tumor, was accejmtddarch 2012.
Subsequently, we conducted the first patient emenitt in June 2012 and started the domestic Ptdisgchl trials.

As for SyB C-1101, the oral form, our natificatiohatinical trial plan for Phase | clinical trialeff the indication of
untreated myelodysplastic syndrome (MDS) was aeckjot December 2012.

Furthermore, Onconova Therapeutics, Inc. (UnitedeS), the licenser of the drugs, announced a &ssitne-up with
Baxter International Inc. for the European markes@ptember 2012.

The conclusion of this business tie-up should &caéd development and commercialization of rigdséot the Western
market, and allows expectations for a heightenesipdity of receiving approval as early as possibl Japan and South
Korea, where we have the development and commizatialn rights, through the utilization of theiirgtal trial data
obtained abroad.

[SyB D-0701]
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In October 2012, we completed the patient enrolinie®9 cases) for Phase Il clinical trial of SyB0D01 (a transdermal
antiemetic patch) for the indication of radiothgrapduced nausea and vomiting.

(ii) Overseas
Sales of SyB L-0501 started in Taiwan in February2through InnoPharmax Inc. (Taiwan), our busirestner. The
drug also sold largely as planned in SingaporeSmdh Korea, where we sell the product throughiEssawe do in Japan.

(iif) Fund procurement

The Company made a resolution on December 27, 20ik8ue the first unsecured convertible bond witiclsacquisition
rights (total issue price: 1 billion yen) with Whitealthcare PE Series 1 Investment Limited LiabMartnership as the
allottee and the 29th warrant (total issue pricg:rBillion yen, total issue price of stocks whesuisd through exercising the
stock acquisition rights: 500 million yen), withetlaim of accelerating development of new drug aatds and further
reinforce the pipeline. Accordingly, Whiz Healthe®E Series 1 Investment Limited Liability Parthgoscompleted
payment of 1,005,100 thousand yen to the Comparaonary 15, 2013.

(iv) Business results

As a result of the aforementioned developmentssales totaled 1,955,178 thousand yen (a year-aniyerease of 3.9%)
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, ridfigthe sales of SyB L-0501 in Japan and Asian t@m

Selling, general and administrative expenses wt2J293,253 thousand yen (a year-on-year decrddse&%0), including
research and development (“R&D”) expenses of 1,£28thousand yen (a year-on-year decrease of 26dr%)e accrual of
expenses associated with the clinical trials foltiple indications for SyB L-0501, clinical trialeif SyB D-0701 and clinical
trials for SyB L-1101, among other things, as welbther selling, general and administrative expeo$8&55,128 thousand
yen (a year-on-year increase of 9.6%).

As a result, we posted operating loss of 1,700tB@@sand yen for the fiscal year ended (in contmeperating loss of
2,066,846 thousand yen for the previous fiscal)y#araddition, recording of totaling 36,516 thomdg/en as non-operating
expenses, primarily comprising foreign exchangedesand bond-issue expenses, and other factais ¢edinary loss of
1,729,480 thousand yen (ordinary loss of 2,095{B88sand yen for the previous fiscal year) andost of 1,733,320
thousand yen (net loss of 2,104,513 thousandoetiné previous fiscal year).

Furthermore, segment information is omitted sit@=@ompany operates a single segment of pharmaaidotisiness
including research and development of pharmacdwicgs as well as manufacturing, marketing an@otalated activities.

Forecast of Business Results for FY 2013

We expect net sales of 1,927 million yen, a 1.4%ekse from the fiscal year ended. Meanwhile,Heraim of further
enhancing the enterprise value, we will advancaelth@lopment of proprietary pipelines, includingvriadications for the
mainstay anticancer drug SyB L-0501.To this endanticipate R&D expenses of 1,408 million yen (1,438ion yen in the
previous fiscal year) and selling, general and aistiative expenses of 2,356 million yen (2,293ioml yen in the previous
fiscal year) including R&D expenses.

The Company’s major development plans of pipelimesaa follows:

<SyB L-0501> (anticancer drug)

We currently proceed with multiple clinical triftsr SyB L-0501 for the extended indications and paapply for an
approval in Japan for the indications of untreameidlent non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma and mantle cell prmma. We will also
start domestic Phase Il clinical trials for theigadion of untreated chronic lymphocytic leukenVée will also consider the
development of SyB L-0501 for other indications.

<SyB L-1101/ SyB C-1101> (anticancer drug)

We plan to continue domestic Phase | clinical $rizfl SyB L-1101 (the intravenous form) for the iradion of
refractory/relapsed myelodysplastic syndrome (MI¥#g. also plan to start domestic Phase | clinidalsfor the indication
of untreated refractory/relapsed myelodysplasti@dsyme (MDS).

<SyB D-0701> (a transdermal antiemetic patch)
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We will investigate the future development polioy 8yB D-0701, based on the results of the Phad@ital trials.

As a result of these planned activities, net sal€s927 million yen, operating loss of 1,889 nailliyen, ordinary loss of
1,922 million yen, and net loss of 1,926 milliomya&re projected for FY 2013.

(2) Financial position analysis

(Analysis of assets, liabilities, net assets, ahdlow)

Total assets as of December 31, 2012 stood at 33D2housand yen, a decrease of 1,753,904 thoysemnflom the
previous fiscal year end. This was primarily du@ tecrease of 1,652,522 thousand yen of markesablgities, as multiple
marketable securities matured and were transféoredsh and deposits, and the subsequent decreeashi and deposits mainly
because of the payment of selling, general andradtrative expenses. Current assets stood at 522€h6usand yen, a
decrease of 1,757,769 thousand yen from the prevViscal year end, primarily reflecting a decreamarketable securities.
Total noncurrent assets stood at 81,567 thousamdayeincrease of 3,865 thousand yen from the pusviiscal year end, due to
such factors as the payment of leasehold depassescoon the anti-disaster office lease contradeveticumulated depreciation
of tangible and intangible fixed assets increasing.

Liabilities stood at 602,232 thousand yen, a deer@d 48,297 thousand yen from the previous figeat end, reflecting a
decrease of accounts payable-other in connectitintié decrease in R&D expenses.

Net assets decreased by 1,705,607 thousand yertHeoprevious fiscal year end to 4,899,957 thouga@mddue to recording
net loss and other factors. As a result, the eqattyp decreased by 2.4 percentage points frorpiagous fiscal year end to
88.6%.

Cash and cash equivalents (hereinafter “cash”) sabd¢40,022 thousand yen, a decrease of 2,07¢h856and yen from
the previous fiscal year end. This was mainly beeaf cash decrease from operating activities tiagutom a decrease in
accounts payable-other and posting loss beforerirdaxes, and of cash decrease from investingitgesidue to purchase of
property, plant and equipment, in spite of a slidgatrease in accounts receivable-trade and invesator
Cash flows from each activity and its factors fas fiscal year end are as follows:

(Cash Flow from Operating Activities)

Cash flow from operating activities showed a deaeddl,648,808 thousand yen due to such decrefesitgys as net loss
before tax of 1,729,520 thousand yen recorded ateteease of accounts payable by 82,105 thousandigspite such
increasing factors as a decrease of inventorie2t805 thousand yen, a decrease of consumptiaet¢aivable by 30,076
thousand yen, a decrease of advances by 25,552athdyen and an increase in trade payable by 2€hdldand yen.

(Cash Flow from Investing Activities)
Cash flows from investing activities showed a deseeaf 410,563 thousand yen mainly due to a castease of 100,000
thousand yen for the purchase of marketable sexsieihd 300,000 thausand yen for increae in tirpesits.

(Cash Flow from Financing Activities)
Cash flows from finacing activities showed a deceeafs719 thousand yen due to a decrease of ledigatidns.
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(Development of index related to cash flow)

4th Term 5th Term 6th Term 7th Term 8th Term
Fiscal year ende| Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ende| Fiscal year ende| Fiscal year ende
December 200§ December 2009 December 201q December 2011 December 2017
Equity ratio (%) 87.0 95.1 95.8 91.0 88.6

Equity ratio on a fair
market value basis (%)

— — — 126.0 104.3

Debt redemption period — — — — _
(years)

Interest coverage ratio

Equity ratio: Equity (net assets excluding subsmiprights to shares) /total assets
Equity ratio on a fair market value basis: totakkeavalue of common stock/total assets
Debt redemption period: Interest-bearing debt/dlst from operating activities
Interest coverage ratio: cash flow from operatictivéties/interest payment
(Notes) 1. Equity ratio on a fair market value basinot shown until theé"®erm and is shown from th& Term.
2. Total market value calculated based on thebmurof shares issued excluding treasury stocks.
3. Debt redemption period and interest coveratie aae not available for the 5th Term and aftarchse of negative
cash flow from operating activities.
2. Debt redemption period and interest coveratie aae not available for the 4th Term becausecoihterest-bearing
debt and interest expense.

(3) Basic policy for profit distribution and dividds for FY 2012 and 2013

Since the foundation of SymBio, dividends have resrbdistributed.

Although SymBio started booking product sales, thagany develops pharmaceutical drugs and contitouese funds for
development activities. Therefore, it is our polioyattempt to gain retained earnings, not to ithiste profit dividends, and
preference to retain funds for sustainable deveéyractivities. However, we recognize that therretf profit to stockholders
is an important management issue and will congdgfit distribution based on future business penfance and financial
condition.

The articles of incorporation provide that the Compean pay interim dividend based on a corporatelu¢ion by Board of
Directors on June 30 every year as the record @ateCompany can also make a distribution of surpjudesignating a record
date in addition to year-end and interim divideriscision making body is board of directors foenn dividend, shareholders'
meeting for year-end dividend.

(4) Risks of business

Described below are major issues that may leadtengpial risks in the Company's business activitiesues that are not
necessarily considered significant by the Compaayatso disclosed, in view of our commitment to makgve information
disclosure to investors and shareholders as thsges may carry weight in making investment dessar in understanding our
business activities. The Company is fully awarehefpotential of these risks and will exert its ustneffort to prevent such risks
from substantiating, but should they substantiateintend to take full appropriate action. Howeweg, consider that investment
decision regarding our stocks should be made bsfully evaluating the following matters, as wellabker matters mentioned
in other sections of this document. We would add the following descriptions do not purport to epall possible risks
associated with investment in our stocks. The &iperspectives mentioned below reflect our undedétg of our business
circumstances as of the date of publication of deisument.

(i) Risks associated with pharmaceutical developritegeneral

SymBio's main business is to in-license drug devakag candidate compounds created by pharmaceuotiogyanies and bio
ventures, and to develop them into pharmaceuticalyzts. The R&D field of pharmaceuticals is repleith strong
competition including pharmaceutical giants. Wisatnore, specialty pharmaceutical companies su8yiaBio try to emulate
each other in quality and speed within the sedte. process from development to manufacture anélatiag involves many

-4 -
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regulatory hurdles, necessitating a vast amounépital input over a long period of time in busgegerations. Their future
prospects involve uncertainty and these risk facéoe associated with the Company’s present antefbtisiness activities.

(a) Uncertainty involved in pharmaceutical develepin

Generally speaking, the pharmaceutical developmeaess up to the market launch of a drug reqainesst amount of
expenditure over a long period. The probabilitgaécess is by no means high. In every stage ola@awent, it is not
infrequent for a decision to be made to halt oag@rogress. In pharmaceutical development, terdifit stages of
development have to be conducted in phases, agatimphase a decision is made on whether the gewefd should
continue. Therefore, it is not rare to see a degith stop a development in mid-process. The pritityais low for a
development progressing successfully and for aymiocbming on stream. Even after a product is ssfaly developed and
launched in the market, there remains a risk ti@approval gets cancelled because of inefficacsydar effects should
serious side effects prove to have the potentisldease damage to health (for details, refe(fjaisk associated with side
effects”), or should the efficacy fail to be recaggd by the re-evaluation of efficacy and safegnducted either on a regular
or temporary basis, in light of the current acadesténdards of medicine and pharmaceuticals dirtteeof re-evaluation. To
reduce and spread these risks, the Company ainos$egs several pipelines and endeavors to prionitsofar as possible
the in-licensing of drug candidates with confirmR@C"*®Jon human subjects. Yet, for small specialty phaeutical
companies such as SymBio, the impact is huge figlesicandidate compound is removed from the pipelinis could have
a significant effect on our financial position, mess performance, and cash flow.

(note) POC (Proof of Concept) means confirming tlieafy and safety of a new drug candidate compdhraligh
clinical trials and verifying the appropriatene$ét® concept.

(b) Uncertainty of income

In order to raise income from the products we a&neetbping, we need to succeed in all the stagdsunf candidate
development, namely obtaining approval from reguiatuthorities, manufacture and marketing eithreoor own or in
partnership with a third party. However, we may netessarily succeed in these activities, or evemr do succeed, we may
not be able to ensure the sufficient profitabifiseded in continuing our business. We currentld falr items in the
pipeline. SyB L-0501, an anticancer drug, gainedmproval for manufacturing and commercializingapan on October 27,
2010, indicated for the treatment of refractor@psled indolent non-Hodgkin's lymphoma as well &ac®ry/relapsed
mantle cell ymphoma. As additional indications, e completed Phase Il clinical trials for refomg/relapsed aggressive
non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma, and are conducting Phasérlical trials for the indications of untreatedblent non-Hodgkin's
lymphoma and untreated mantle cell ymphoma, andefoactory/relapsed multiple myeloma. SyB D-0781ransdermal
antiemetic patch, has completed the patient emnelte for Phase Il clinical trials. SyB L-1101 (tiéravenous form)/SyB C-
1101 (the oral form), anticancer drugs in-licenseduly 2011, are undergoiithase | clinical trials in the intravenous form
indicated for the treatment of myelodysplastic sgnte (MDS), and Phase | clinical trials of the drage planned to start for
the indication of untreated myelodysplastic syndediMDS).We are promoting the development of these compquaiafisng
to successfully market the end products to obtainme. In some cases, we may consider enterin@ildoce with other
pharmaceutical companies in development and magket as to expedite the in-flow of income. Notwigimding our effort,
these pipeline compounds will take a consideralvieumt of time before they reach the market. Thereiguarantee that
they will make it onto the market as viable produmt that an alliance agreement can be signedailittr pharmaceutical
companies. We are of the opinion that the seleafdndications and the methods of alliance andketimg so far identified
promise sufficient future profitability, consideginhe market size and marketing performance ofamat drugs. However,
should we prove to be wrong in the assessmenhauid there be any change in the conditions onhwthie assessment is
based and we cannot promptly adjust to the chatigere may be a significant impact on our finanpi@sition, business
performance, and cash flow.

(c) Uncertainly in legislations and regulationsuigimg compliance and health insurance system

The pharmaceutical industry, SymBio'‘s business fisldubject to various regulatory restrictions ased by the
pharmaceutical laws and administrative guidancgedas other relevant legislations of respectiwantries in all aspects of
business operations, namely, research, developmenifacture and marketing. We formulate our bussiqdans in
accordance with the pharmaceutical laws and otineent legislative regulations and with the healgurance system
together with the drug pricing developments tha¢eya from these legislations. Notwithstanding, ehisra possibility that
these regulations, systems and pricing will charefere the products that we are developing reaeimtrket. If any major
change does occur, there may be a significant itgraour financial position, business performarace] cash flow.
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(d) Risk concerning development and marketing owaerse

We conduct pharmaceutical business in Asia, natdafrto Japan, where we anticipate growth of healh needs and
position as the strategic business domain. In easrearkets similarly to in Japan, the pharmacaudievelopment and
marketing generally require a vast amount of exjiereland are associated with business risks.e@aae investment
expenditure and spread business risks, we outdictre development and marketing of some of oueldped drugs
overseas to pharmaceutical and other companiesn Wa@ut-licenses the rights we possess, we selé@xnsee company
after careful due diligence and continue monitodasgppropriate. The development and sales ofa@rnded products are
subject to business conditions of the licensee emyjr any changes in regulatory and competitivérenments in
respective countries and may fall below the orib@gectations, resulting in milestone revenue raydlty income generated
below our plan. In such cases, there may be andnguaour financial position, business performameel cash flow.

(e) Competition in the pharmaceutical industry

The pharmaceutical industry is an intensely contipetsector. A large number of both Japanese armigfio
pharmaceutical companies and research institummhsding giant multinational pharmaceuticals cotepa the arena.
Technological innovation is progressing rapidly.niyl@ompetitors have comparative advantage oven technology,
marketing and financial position. Thus these coriggamay more efficiently produce and sell compeft@ducts of greater
effectiveness to our developed products. This meeatsvhat transpires in the competition we conaitlt these competitors
in development, manufacturing and marketing opanatimay have a significant impact on our finanp@ition, business
performance, and cash flow.

(f) Risk associated with side effects

Unexpected side effects may occur from the uséhafrpaceutical products, from their clinical trisdge to post-marketing
stage. When serious and unexpected side effectieastoped, compensation claims may arise, or aipgion the situation,
there is the risk of a delay in clinical trialseren discontinuation of product development. Irecasch side effects could lead
to further damage to health, there is the risktiercancellation of approval or the discontinuattbsales. Regarding
compensation claims, we have in place the liabifigurance necessary to minimize the financial dgnvehen such claims
arise. However, it does not exclude the possibilint the compensation award exceeds the amouneihslf that happens,
there may be a significant impact on our finanpi@sition, business performance, and cash flow.

(9) Product liability

The development and manufacture of pharmaceutioalygts involve product liability risk. If in futer any products that
we have developed cause damage to health or apgrimariate matters are discovered in clinical ¢fiahanufacture, sales or
marketing, we will be subject to product liabilifihis may have a significant impact on our finahpisition, business
performance, and cash flow. Indeed, if a prodadtility compensation suit is filed against us, ocorporate image will be
damaged, leading to loss of confidence in us amdlawgs, which may have an impact on our business.

(i) Risk in operating our business

(a) Risk concerning business model

SymBio does not own its research and manufactuaaiijtfes. We mainly target orphan drugs in oncgldgematology
and autoimmune diseases, in-licensing from pharoteed companies and bio ventures drug candidateslynwith POC
confirmed on human subjects and developing and etiatkthem as pharmaceutical products for the Jsgmand Asian
markets (China, South Korea, Taiwan and Singaptcg, 8/e adopt the business model to raise incamdepaofit from
doing so. In developing the pipeline and marketimg,plan to engage in alliances with other pharmigca companies.
However, there is no guarantee that we can contslydn-license drug candidate compounds thatfgadisr criteria and
secure these partner companies. In addition, anauely target orphan drugs for in-licensing, we may be able to generate
the expected sales turnover. In such cases, theydenan impact on our financial position, busimes$ormance, and cash
flow. What is more, the competition surrounding giiarmaceutical sector and changes in SymBio'sdiahposition may
force us to revise our business model. Shouldatidsir, there may be a significant impact on ouirass.

(b) Dependency on a specific customer
As a specialty pharmaceutical company without petida facilities, SymBio needs to depend on supblyroducts from
other companies when conducting the clinical tridlproducts under development and in post-margetaies. Given this
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fact, the financial position and production corati of the product supplier may have a significamptact on our financial
position, business performance, and cash flowigeline development and marketing, our currentiess plan is focused on
forming alliances with pharmaceutical companiesweler, if the partner company's management comditeieriorates
drastically or if its management policies changkiclv are matters beyond our control, our initiadipess plan may not be
realized. Also, if any breach of contract occues thecessitate the termination of the contractipslated by the contract, the
alliance may end before the agreed term. In suses;dhere may be a significant impact on our fir@rposition, business
performance, and cash flow. Normally, in allianoattacts with partner companies, expected reveoligsecialty
pharmaceutical companies such as SymBio, to beddiafore the products reach the market will hevglsum upon
signing the contract, funding for co-developmerd anilestone payment. Of these, the milestone payimem extremely
unstable and unpredictable income as it is basdbeoattainment of predefined results. If develophpgogress is delayed,
there may be a significant impact on our finanpi@sition, business performance, and cash flow.

(c) Risk concerning intellectual property rights

In our drug development activities, we make useamious intellectual property rights. The use st rights basically has
been granted from other companies such as phartieadewand ventures. However, the possibility remedhat our in-
licensed candidate compound does not succeed petiding patent application made by the in-licemgiartner. Moreover,
it is difficult to completely avoid a third partyeating an intellectual property right that supdesethe intellectual property
right to which we have consent of use. These sitnatcould lead to a significant impact on our ficial position, business
performance, and cash flow. To date, no lawsuitdess filed by a third party against us conceriibgllectual property
rights, including patents in connection with ouoguct developments. However, in June 2009, an essrgharmaceutical
company issued a written warning to us. The compkemyanded that there be no infringement of thenpatelapan of a
product owned by this company. In light of the agvirom patent attorneys and lawyers, we beliegettie claim being
made by the overseas company is groundless. Mekmwia have received no other request from the&aigpany since
June 2009 and therefore, our understanding isstbatre not in dispute. Should a dispute arise thithcompany, there may
be a significant impact on our financial positibasiness performance, and cash flow. When in-liogns product, we take
advice from lawyers and conduct a thorough dugetiice investigation through patent firms in ordereduce such
intellectual property risks. Nevertheless, it ifficlilt to realize full protection from the occurree of intellectual property
right disputes involving the infringement of thipdwty rights, and these may have a significant hpa our financial
position, business performance, and cash flow.cHmelidate compounds that we in-license are notssaciéy protected by
patent. On the other hand, even if our candidateponind is not protected by patent, the assignnfehieccompound for
review by the regulatory authorities would virtyaléstrict the entry of generic drugs during thdew period, realizing the
monopolistic protection for a certain period oféim

(d) Data protection

To reduce the risk of significant confidential infeation relating to pipeline development and othgsiness activities from
leaking outside the company, SymBio engages inoigodata protection. We require directors, Scienfiflvisory Board
(SAB) members, outsourcing partners, and other bssipartners to sign confidentiality agreementenBwith the
agreement in place, directors, SAB members, outs@upartners and other business partners may metrado
confidentiality, and should this occur, significaainfidential information may be divulged elsewhavhich may impact our
business, financial position, business performaaid,cash flow.

(e) Risk concerning important contracts

If any contracts that might have significant impastconducting our business operations are tergtindde to its reaching
full term, being cancelled or for any other reagbere may be a significant impact on our financ@idition, business
performance, and cash flow.

(iii) Risk associated with organization
(a) Risk of being a young company
SymBio is a young company founded in March 2005&inception, we have engaged in in-licensing aiwiof drug
development candidate compounds. We built up tlerpaceutical development business from scratchreratded income
from product sales in August 2010 for the firstagim our history. There is a possibility that besis issues that we have not
ever encountered arise in future. At the momenigwer, it is difficult to predict any changes iretexternal environmental
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factors that may affect our business results. Toerewe consider our business results for the yeeats to be inadequate
reference material for passing an objective judgmeanwhether or not our company can continue tevgro

(b) Risk of being a small corporation

SymBio uses contract research organizations (CRQ)ridwcting R&D, thereby forming a development framegwo
requiring relatively small staff numbers. With pregs in the development of pipeline already inglaed with new pipelines
of new candidate compounds coming on stream, wetplincrease its human resources in R&D. Howedeenvhatever
reason, should an alliance with a CRO become teredrat should we fail to secure the planned numbstadf or should the
existing staff decide to leave, our business ofmratmay be hampered, leading to a possible imgaour financial position,
business performance, and cash flow.

(c) Dependency on a specific person

Mr. Fuminori Yoshida, the Representative Directoyrfding President and CEO, has played a key rote SymBio’s
foundation in the implementation and executionlbbperations in the company business manageménis,Tin the event that
Mr. Yoshida cannot continue to perform his corperasponsibilities for some unforeseen reasomsll ihave a significant
impact on our business operations.

(d) The Scientific Advisory Board (SAB)

The Scientific Advisory Board (SAB) is an advisorynphto the president on the in-licensing evaluatbnew drug
candidates. We invite members of the panel fromigiins and scientists engaged in basic researohaglregard as having
excellent track records and experience. The SAB s1eet or three times a year to engage in activeudsion and debate,
with each member giving his/her specialist perspeco that a good risk-balanced portfolio caneaied from among the
vast volume of drug candidates gathered from thedmide, with due consideration of healthcare nesuts$ profitability. We
will continue in our effort to acquire members atellence for the SAB. However, if difficulty shouddise in procuring
members, for reasons such as the cancellationndfamt with existing members, ending of the ternoffite or refusal of
renewal, or should a brain drain occur, there n@gimpact on our in-licensing of drug candidates.

(ix) Business Results
(a) Business performance in past years
SymBio's key business indicators are given below

Term 4th Term 5th Term 6th Term 7th Term 8th Term

Fiscal Year Ended December 2008 December 2009| December 2010| December 2011| December 2012

Net sales (thousand

Yo 1,630,029 1,191,127 1,449,972 1,882,521 1,955,178
Operating income (loss|

o e 132,859 (208,027) (612,793) (2,066,846) (1,700,273)
Ordinary income (loss) 24,169 (214,072) (638,375) (2,095,382) (1,729,480)

(thousand yen)

SymBio’s net sales up until the 5th Term consistelg of income from alliance contracts (e.g. cont@greement lump
sum, milestone payment). From the 6th Term, we heserded sales deriving from the sale of produatsdate, with the
exception of the 4th Term, the total R&D expensaba@her general administrative expenses exceedeid@me, resulting
in the posting of operating loss, ordinary loss aatlloss. For this reason, we do not considefitlaacial statements and
indicators for past years to provide adequate eefar data in making timely comparisons in busipestormance and in
forecasting our future business performance.
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(b) Expected Increase in R&D Expenditure
SymBio's R&D expenses for the past five fiscal yeaesgiven below

Term 4th Term 5th Term 6th Term 7th Term 8th Term

Fiscal Year Ended December 2008 December 2009 December 2010 December 2011| December 2012

R&D expenses (thousand

yen) 868,241 816,501 1,118,182 1,945,029 1,438,125

SymBio intends to further continue R&D activities,ialhwould mean an increase of the cumulative losste
foreseeable future. With future increases in tloglpct sales revenue from more additional indicatiohSyB L-0501 and in
the income from alliances with pharmaceutical comigs we intend to improve our business performascgoon as
possible; however, there is no guarantee that sgsuraptions will materialize and swift performanegiovement seen.

(c) Negative balance of retained earnings brougtwdrd

SymBio is a specialty pharmaceutical company. Uhélproducts under development at the clinicalestagch the market
so that we can earn stable income through prodies &nd royalty income, we will post a huge upHfrautlay of R&D
expenditure. Due to this, except #erm (2008), we have posted net current lossee sior foundation. At the end of 8th
Term, the year ended December 31, 2012, we recoregative balance of 7,146,411 thousand yen aseetaarnings
carried forward.

We intend to become a profitable business entigealy as possible by advancing our quality clihpragrams in a rapid,
precise and efficient manner as planned. Howekerpossibility still exists that profits may not ggenerated at the time
initially planned. Should our business fail to depeas planned and net profits are not generatedaee the possibility of a
considerable delay in our negative retained easngagried forward turning positive.

(d) Fund-raising

The nature of SymBio's specialty pharmaceuticalrimss means that the Company will require huge R&dif If our
business plan does not take shape as planned asufferea shortfall in funding, we will endeavorpgmcure funds by
changing our strategic alliances, securing newaraté contracts or issuing new stocks. Howevergifail to generate funds
exactly when they are required, there may be agedoubt cast over the continuation of our busi@erations.

(e) Net operating loss carried forward on tax
Net operating loss carried forward on tax exists year end. For this reason, we are not subjexbrporate tax, local
inhabitant tax and local enterprise tax at thedseoh rates and we expect this to continue for s¢verms into the future.
However, if our business performance makes a googress in future due to favorable business devedop, net
operating loss carried forward may be removedaatian anticipated and no longer be applied taéuriction of taxable
income. Should this situation occur, we would beediable for the payments of corporate tax, lonabbitant tax and local
enterprise tax at standard rates, which may hawmpact on net profit/loss and cash flow curremptignned.

(v) Other Risks
(a) Profit distribution to stockholders
Since the foundation of SymBio, dividends have resrbdistributed. We are currently at a busineggestéstill making
up-front investment into the development of phamogical drugs and we continue to prioritize the afsinds for
strengthening our financial position and for conéd R&D activities. Thus, we have at present nogpfanmaking dividend
payout. However, we recognize that the return ofipto stockholders is an important managementdsnd will consider
profit distribution based on future business perfance and financial condition.

(b) Procurement of funds

As we rapidly expand our business, we expect taedacrease in our development funding requirerr@né of our
options for procuring funds is to issue new stotkaie do so, the number of our outstanding stoékimcrease, potentially
diluting the value per share of our stock.



SymBio Pharmaceuticals Limited (4582) Summary ofFcial Statements [Japanese GAAP] (Non-consotijlate
Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

(c) Stock value dilution by execution of stock aisifion rights

We adopt the stock option plan in order to motiatd encourage higher business performance of ll@gctors,
employees, and collaborators, and to attract huesources of excellence. In accordance with ther@ertial Code of 1890
Article 280-19, 280-20 and 280-21, and CompaniesAktitle 236, 238, and 239, stock acquisition righate granted to
board directors and employees.

Moreover, the Company made a resolution at the BoBRdrectors meeting held on December 27, 201i8doe the 1st
convertible bond with stock acquisition rights @éiassue price: 1 billion yen) by way of third-pagllotment and the stock
option (total issue price: 5.1 million yen, totssile price of stocks when issued through exercteimgtock acquisition rights:
500 million yen). The proceeds from the issuanceevpaid in on January 15, 2013.

As of the date of publication of this document, tluenber of the above-mentioned stock acquisitightsi and the
convertible bond with stock acquisition rights @eafter, number of potential shares) totals 5343 shares and comprises
approximately 19.7 % of the total number of outdtag shares and potential shares added together.

There is the possibility that stock value per shiareéhe company will be diluted if these potenshbresre exercised in
the future. To attract talent, the Company may ioortto offer similar incentives. This means tlidihése stock acquisition
rights are exercised in future, the stock valuegbare of the company may be diluted.

(d) Legal risk pertaining to unregistered offerfgstock acquisition rights in the past

The Company has granted stock acquisition righteutie stock option plan as long-term incentivesfrard directors
and employees as well as collaborators since tiedfation in March 2005.

Stock acquisition rights have been issued sincéntteption of plan paying special attention to evsion of Securities and
Exchange Law of 1948 that board directors and eyagl® are excluded from the calculation of numbegres$ons receiving
minority private offering. However, even after Order Enforcement of the Financial Instruments &xdhange Act Article
2-12 was no longer exempted (the article had pteddo exempt the application of the provision teafuired the exclusion
of directors/officers and employees from the caltiah of persons receiving small private offeringsase stock acquisition
rights were granted to persons other than direfciffiers and employees) due to the amendment afadge for Corporate
Information and Related Disclosure in responseéadivision of Financial Instrument and ExchangeiA&@eptember 2007,
we had continued to issue stock acquisition rightsccordance with the provisions of Securities Brohange Act 1948 due
to the malfunction of internal organizations toleot information regarding revision of laws andioethces and assess their
implications to the Company.

In consequence, it came to light that we had nbt slubmitted Securities Registration Forms for ttoels acquisition
rights it had issued in October 2008, March 200@, iarch 2010 despite there being legal obligatiordo so as the number
of persons receiving offers had exceeded 50, makiaig unregistered offerings prohibited under #vesl

Immediately upon discovery of this lapse, we regaithe fact to the Kanto Local Finances Bureau anddhed a thorough
enquiry into how and why such omission arose, awifilg submitted the legally required disclosurecdments in August
2010. At the date of publication of this documeve, have duly filed all the required disclosures.

Furthermore, based on in-house findings concugrettained regarding the cause of omission andcadeiceived from
external experts, measures to prevent recurreecanulated and put strictly in effect focusingtbe following five
objectives: 1. Re-education regarding compliandbeatvhole company level, 2. Creation of complianeeanism and
internal organization reinforcement, 3. Reinforcetrafrcompliance committee functions, 4. Reinforcehwdrelations with
and active use of external experts, 5. Reinforcemiatsystem of checks by the board of auditorsiarednal audit office

We have not received any surcharge payment ortigedeto this incident at the date of publicatidrthis document.
Should we receive any surcharge payment order, Venwi may have a significant impact on our finahposition, business
performance, and cash flow.

(e) Stock holding by venture capital
In general, venture capitals and investment pastips own shares for the purpose of realizing ahgains by selling
shares after the IPO. There is the possibility teature capitals and investment partnershipsavatour shares may sell all

or a portion of our shares they own, and shoutdéur, it may have an impact on the market priceusfshare.

(f) Risk associated with natural disasters
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If any disasters (earthquake, typhoon, fire, eing plague occur in our geographic business domatrish lead to the
occurrence of human and material damage, or suispesasd delay in business, fall in social credipiind compensation
issues may have an impact on our financial positiosiness performance, and cash flow.

2. Situation of corporate group
None to be reported.

3. Management policies
(1) Basic policy of company management

SymBio Pharmaceuticals Limited was established inckl2005 by Fuminori Yoshida, who previously sereedcurrently
as Corporate VP of Amgen Ltd.(United States) andiBeat of Amgen Japan (currently Takeda Bio DevelpinCenter
Limited) for 12 years since its founding stage.

We aim to achieve social and management respaiisiiby responding to unmet medical needs witldiggi principle of
mutual harmony, spinning an intricate symbioti@atieinship between patients, physicians, scientistgjlators and investors.

We regard underserved therapeutic areas with egtyesignificant medical needs as a business oppitytand focus on the
areas of oncology, hematology, and autoimmune séseahere high entry barriers exist due to the tegree of specialization
required. In this sense, we are the first specjgigrmaceutical company in Japan. Rather than erglbfockbuster new drugs
(those with the sales of more than 100 billion yev§ channel our resources into the developmenéwfdrugs specializing in
oncology, hematology, and autoimmune diseases,enhedical needs are outstanding though with thigdldmarket size.
Holding multiple promising drugs and drug candiddtethese areas will enable us to build the gmidfolio of pipelines and
continue our business sustainably.

(2) Key performance index

We are of the opinion that, in order to enhanceenterprise value as a specialty pharmaceuticapaom) it is inevitable to
continually in-license candidate drugs under dgwelent and proceed with the development to placeith@ucts on the market,
and establish the sale and support system. Tetliiswe intend to aggressively make an ongoingsimvent of management
resources into R&D activities.

We have several years product sales record of S§BALin Japan and Asian countries. However, thdymiosales have not
generated revenue enough to cover the aforementigpfeont investments at this moment and net phafit yet to be realized.
We continuously seek the early realization of desysto secure the stable profitability by promotifREAKISYM® in
collaboration with Eisai, actively adding new inations for SyB L-0501, and developing and acquigngpproval for other
products in the pipeline.

(3) Pipeline
SymBio currently has four pipeline products, SyB 1605SyB L-1101, SyB C-1101 and SyB D-0701.We will amn to in-
license new candidate drugs so as to expand aidltheipipeline portfolio with the balanced riskena trade-off.

(i) SyB L-0501

Bendamustine hydrochloride (the generic name), thieeapharmaceutical ingredient of SyB L-0501, isaaticancer drug
that has been in use for a number of years in Geymader the trade name of Ribomustin for the treatrof non-Hodgkin's
lymphoma™ Y:multiple myeloma, and chronic lymphocytic leukenWée have elected to in-license this product bezaus
there is currently no effective medication for thdications of refractory/relapsed indolent non-gkid’'s lymphoma and
mantle cell ymphoma. These are precisely undegesktiverapeutic areas aligned with our corporatsions and also fall
within one of our targeted therapeutic fields (hefwic cancer). Astellas Deutschland GmbH is tleldwide licensor of
bendamustine hydrochloride. In North America, Cephalnc. (United States) is licensed from Astelemitschland GmbH
and obtained approvals from Food and Drug Admiaigtn (FDA) in the United States to use the druglie treatment of
chronic lymphocytic leukemia and refractory B-a#n-Hodgkin’s lymphoma in March 2008 and Octobed@0espectively.
Mundipharma International Corporation Limited (WdtKingdom) and Jenssen-cilag (United Kingdom)adse licensed
from Astellas Deutschland GmbH and have the exotusghts for development and marketing for Eurapd other regions,
respectively. Meanwhile, SymBio is licensed fromelsts Deutschland GmbH and has the exclusive rightdevelopment
and marketing for Japan, China (including Hong Kosguth Korea and Singapore. In Japan, the draivest a
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manufacture and marketing approval with the indicet of refractory/relapsed indolent non-Hodgkilyimphoma and mantle
cell ymphoma on October 27, 2010 and came intketamnder the trade name of TREAKISYM® on Decemti&r2D10.

In addition, the Company is working on the develeptrfor refractory/relapsed aggressive non-Hodgkiyfrnphoma,
untreated indolent non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma, untrdatentle cell lymphoma, refractory/relapsed mudtiplyeloma and
untreated chronic lymphocytic leukemia to add neslidations. We intend to maximize the enterprideevaf bendamustine
by further promoting life cycle management. Eisai,Ctd. has the rights for joint development andlegive marketing
under the contract with us and sells the produdajpan.

In Asia, SyB L-0501 received the approval for thaiéation of indolent non-Hodgkin's lymphoma andatic
lymphocytic leukemia in Hong Kong in December 200%ong Kong, Cephalon, Inc. has the exclusive gdbt
development and marketing and sells the drug. S¥BQt received the approval for the indicationswadbient non-
Hodgkin’s lymphoma and chronic lymphocytic leukenmgsingapore in January 2010.

In South Korea and Singapore, Eisai has the exaugjhts for development and marketing under th&ract with us. In
Singapore, Eisai started to sell the product int&aper 2010 after receiving the approval. In Séldghea, SyB L-0501
received the approval for the indications of chedgmphocytic leukemia and multiple myeloma in M2g11 and Eisai
started to sell the drug in October 2011.

Else, Cephalon, our business partner, is conduttimglinical trials in China and our business parfnnoPharmax Inc.
(Taiwan) received the approval on October 18, 26IMaiwan for SyB L-0501, starting to sell the prodin February 2012.

At the American Society of Hematology (ASH) helddecember 2009, Professor Mathias J. Rummel of Usitye
Hospital in Giessen (Germany) reported that thelination therapy with bendamustine and rituxirff45 2causes fewer
side effects and is more efficacious than R-CHORahe™ currently in use as the standard treatment of evtaton-
Hodgkin’s lymphoma as a result of the comparattuels of untreated patients.

In this study(the Phase Il clinical trials conducted in Germari9 untreated patient§'® “of malignant non-Hodgkin’s
lymphoma and mantle cell lymphoma were groupeardom into those undergoing the combination thecdpy
bendamustine and rituximab and those undergoing REHherapy, and the efficacy, safety and progradsée survival
(PFS) period™® *\were comparatively considered between the two grolipe analysis of 513 valid cases exhibited thet t
median of progress free survival period (the prineraluation item) was 54.9 months in the grouhwigndamustine and
rituximab, prolonged by more than 20 months tha® 3donths in the R-CHOP group, which was a stasijisignificant
difference. As for side effects, statistical siggahce was exhibited for hemotoxin, the use of G-€%¥) and hair loss.
Professor Rummel concluded that the combinatiorafhyeof bendamustine and rituximab could be thé-fine therapy for
such indolent non-Hodgkin's lymphoma as folliculamphoma and mantle cell lymphoma.

On December 22, 2009, approximately three weelks tife announcement by Professor Rummel at ASH,N&gonal
Comprehensive Cancer Network revised Clinical Pra@igeelelines in Oncology and the combination therapy
bendamustine and rituximab was listed in the gindehs a recommended first-choice drug for untcepsgients of follicular
lymphoma (indolent non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma) and nfecell lymphoma.

(Note 1) Non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma (NHL) is a cancétyanphatic system in which lymphocytes develop igr@dnt growths
other than Hodgkin’s lymphoma. The majority of Jagee patients are suffering from NHL.

Antibody therapy with rituximab administered asffiline drug is the standard treatment for NHL. tdger, there is currently
no established therapy for failed or relapsed cases

(Note 2) Rituximab is a monoclonal antibody agathstprotein CD20 used in the treatment of CD20-p@sB-cell non-
Hodgkin’s lymphoma. In Japan, Chugai Pharmaceu@ce] Ltd. is the original seller and Zenyaku Kyo@jwo., Ltd.
manufactures and sells Rituxan® Injection 10mg/mL.

(Note 3) R-CHOP therapy denotes the combinatiorafhewith rituximab, cyclophosphamide, doxorubigimcristine and
prednisolone.

(Note 4) Untreated patients are those who haverrmmen treated in the past and receive the treatfoethe first time for the
indication.

(Note 5) Progression free survival (PFS) periatthéslength of time during which the patients sueviree of disease
progression.

(Note 6) G-CSF is the abbreviation for granulocydéeny stimulating factor.

(i) SyB L-1101/C-1101
SyB L-1101 (the intravenous form)/C-1101 (the oraht) (the generic name: rigosertib) is a multi-li@anhibitor™¢ ")
with a unique mode of action against cancer. frésently under development by Onconova Therapeirtithe United States
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and Europe for the indications of myelodysplasyitdsomes (MDS), pancreatic cancer and ovarian caRtease |1l clinical
trials are underway for the indication of refragloelapsed MDS (administered by intravenous ingggtithe most advanced-
stage development of rigosertib, with an orphamdtesignation by Food and Drug Administration ie tnited States in
2009 and special protocol assessment (SB&JPfor Phase |l trial design as well.

In addition to the aforementioned advancementsrahformulation of rigosertib is under developmbgtOnconova
Therapeutics and Phase |l clinical trials are uwdgrfor myelodysplastic syndromes (MDS) as thedation. Phase | clinical
trials have been completed in solid tumors withittigation of the Phase II/1ll combination cliniicgials in pancreatic cancer
and Phase |l clinical trials in ovarian cancer.

SymBio signed the license agreement with Oncono@dffeutics in July 2011, for the exclusive rightiéwelop and
commercialize rigosertib for Japan and South KdBesed on this agreement, we plan to advance treagewent of the
intravenous form of rigosertib in refractory/relagsMDS, for which late stage development is coretliat the United Sates
and Europe, and subsequently in the oral form treated MDS. MDS represent a group of hematolagiwotrs with the
increasing number of patients and commonly afféetselderly. MDS are relapsed diseases with a higtedihood of
developing leukemia. Effective medication has restrbfound especially for refractory/relapsed MD®ating an
underserved therapeutic area.

We will continue the development for the indicatimfrsolid tumor as well as MDS. We plan to develop treatment
methods that are well tolerated by patients armbimpliance with relevant laws and regulations byrapriately alternating
the developments of the intravenous and oral forms.

(Note 7) Multi-kinase inhibitors impede the growginpliferation and metastasis of cancer cells,agbgeradicating them.
(Note 8) SPA is a declaration from FDA after the efi Phase Il clinical trials that an uncompletéze Il clinical trial’s
design, indications, clinical endpoints, valuatitams, and statistical analyses agreed upon airtt®hase Il meeting are
acceptable for FDA approval. New drug licensinglapgion utilizing this scheme facilitates the aevation and approval by
FDA and enhances the possibility of secure prolduetch in the market because FDA already comptagsonsiderations
of the contents of Phase Il clinical trials in adee.

(iii) SyB D-0701

SyB D-0701 is a sustained-release transdermal agtiiepatch containing granisetron and used toveliausea and
vomiting ™ ®associated with cancer chemotherapy and radiotheByB D-0701 has an antiemetic effect that is $usth
for 5 days and improves the effectiveness of treatrof patients undergoing chemotherapy and ragiiafly.

Thus, SyB D-0701 is expected to bring significantdfits to patients as well as health professiomaislved as supportive
care™® %or cancer chemotherapy and radiotherapy outpat@ntancer prevalence continues to rise in fusume to
improve overall QOL (Quality of Life) of patients.

SymBio obtained from Abeille Pharmaceuticals, Itnifed States) the exclusive right for developraerd
commercialization for Japan, China (including Horanlf), South Korea, Singapore and Taiwan and preceét the
development.

We started Phase Il clinical trials in December@@ith the intention to develop a drug for radiotdpy-induced nausea
and vomiting to begin with for which significantmet medical needs exist due to the lack of effeatiedicationPatient
enrollment for the phase Il trials was complete@utober 2012. We will conduct detailed analyseisvestigate the future
direction of the development.

(Note 9) Approximately 30% to 90% of patients ex@ece nausea and vomiting associated with caneenatherapy and
radiotherapy. These symptoms are some of the naasfup side effects for patients. Persistent naasehvomiting may lead
to dehydration, electrolyte imbalance, and nutraggrivation. They may also significantly influertbe effectiveness of
cancer treatment due to loss of appetite or agtedyahysical and mental condition of patients. Liing nausea and vomiting
to the minimum is a key to improve overall comptiarand leads the treatment to success. Vomitidiyided into three main
categories:
1. Acute
Vomiting develops within 24 hours of dosage of eanticer drug, usually starting within 1 or 2 hours.
2. Delayed
Vomiting develops from 24 to 120 hours after dosafgenticancer drug, and persists for several days.
3. Anticipatory
Vomiting usually develops on the day prior to dasafjanticancer drug.
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(Note 10) Supportive care for cancer chemotherapgists of the treatment of cancer-induced symptamiscomplications
and the control of side effects of chemotherapyradibtherapy, and also includes mental supportpdtients. It assumes
considerable significant in cancer treatment tammbrcancer-induced pains and nausea and vomitiagcated with
chemotherapy and radiotherapy.

(4) Mid-Term/Long Term strategy
SymBio is pursuing primarily the following five stemies in order to achieve Long Range Plan (LRP).
(i) De-risking by post-POC strategy

We in-license drug candidates for which POC (pafafoncept) is already confirmed on human subjecpsinciples.
Accordingly, they should be the drugs that are iialatively late stage of clinical development beady on the market
overseas. The advanced development is already ctatlaverseas for these drug candidates and ffieacy and safety are
already confirmed on human subjects, thereby reduttie development risk. We utilize existing cladidata available
overseas so as to compress development timeliedsce the development costs, and increase thénbkel of regulatory
approvals in Japan and Asian markets.

(i) Building high-quality pipeline with exceptionakarch and evaluation capabilities

Our new drug search engine is connected to thesdiveetworks with pharmaceutical companies anddadures, and
enables us to select promising drug candidates fhemast amount of chemical compounds after thefulreview by
internal experts. Using their wealth of experieat#he forefront of research and development, SiieAdvisory Board
(SAB) members carefully evaluate and render findgjjuent on each drug candidate. The highly estadalisiereening
process up to the final selection of drug candidadapled with the post-POC strategy, reduces thieldpment risk and
compresses the timelines. It also helps to unaledshow satisfactorily the healthcare needs areaméto improve the
accuracy of revenue projections after the prodauatéh.

(iii) Containment of fixed costs by laboless/fablesategy
SymBio does not own any research or productionifes) which are often regarded as the main cafesdixed costs.
Once development candidate compounds are searnbeskkected, we focus on value-added activitieh asahe formulation
and implementation of development strategy andoomte other necessary routines. This enables nesitee development
costs of pharmaceutical drugs and secure the rmobflfinancial strategy.

(iv) Realization of high business efficiency by “BlQeean” strategy
There are many cases that the standard drug useskag cannot be prescribed in Japan or a newsdiagnched in Japan

five years behind its initial approval overseasisTgroblem is called “drug lag” and becoming aggted, and the term like
“cancer patient refugee” has been created. Theldgaig conspicuous in our strategic therapeugasiof oncology,
hematology, and autoimmune diseases. The marlettimfancer drugs is huge and still continues tovgrith the population
being aged. However, anticancer drugs have a \aiolger of indications and they are fragmented by tfmancer. There is
only the limited number of patients in some thetaigeareas depending on type of cancer. Extremigly tiegree of
specialization is required for the developmentrdfcancer drugs in these therapeutic areas, whilften financially
unattractive for larger pharmaceutical companigsuisue despite the high degree of developmerculify. This partially
accounts for the causes for drug lag. Contrarilgecsnew drug succeeds in receiving an approvateathing the market
for these therapeutic areas, we would be able eeliesuperior growth and profitability due to thel of fierce competition
by continuously expanding the indications and briggnew products into the market.

(v) Expanding Business in Asia Pacific Countries
Significant growth in medical needs and increasiamand for higher quality therapeutic options ageeeted in Asian
countries as they continue to undergo rapid econdenvelopment. Similar to in Japan, the trend aleskrs that the
development of new drugs is stagnant with the patjfmr being rapidly aging in these countries. latans in oncology,
hematology, and autoimmune diseases are emergiagas of unmet medical needs with rising demandffective
therapies. We secure the rights to manufacturecaminercialize anticancer drugs SyB L-0501 and SyR0Q11SyB C-1101
and a transdermal antiemetic patch SyB D-0701 iaAsbuntries not only in Japan.

(5) Issues to be solved by the Company
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The Company will solve the following important issue

(i) Further expansion of pipeline
In order to enhance the enterprise value as aapepharmaceutical company, we need to expangitiedine through
continually in-licensing of new candidate drugsdevelopment.
We have four products, SyB L-0501, SyB L-1101, SyB1D4land SyB D-0701 in the pipeline and clinicallsriare
underway.We continue with ongoing efforts to iretise an additional pipeline.

(i) Pursuit of life cycle management of TREAKISYM®yB L-0501)

In order to enhance the enterprise value, it ticatito maximize returns from each drug candidetéer development by
adding new indications for developed candidate slaftgr their initial introduction in pursuit ofdi cycle management.

TREAKISYM® has received the approval for manufactanel marketing with the approved indications of
refractory/relapsed indolent non-Hodgkin's lymphoamal refractory/relapsed mantle cell lymphoma. &fwtitional
indications, Phase Il clinical trials were comptefer refractory/relapsed aggressive non-Hodghymghoma, and Phase Il
clinical trials are underway for untreated indoleah-Hodgkin's lymphoma, untreated mantle cell lijonpa and
refractory/relapsed multiple myeloma, as well asufiatreated chronic lymphocytic leukemia is undgnfiea the clinical trial.
We will add new indications in pursuit of life cgcinanagement to maximize the value of TREAKISYM®.

(iii) Expansion to other Asian regions

SymBio positions China (including Hong Kong), Soutbr&a, Taiwan, and Singapore as our important giateographic
domains in addition to Japan. In these areas, drigivth in economy and medical needs is expectedwencbnsider that
these areas will assume increasing importancericanporate strategy.

Among our pipelines, we plan to develop and mag@ L-0501 and SyB D-0701 in China (including Hong KprSouth
Korea, Taiwan, and Singapore as well as Japas eitablished by the result of market survey tigaificant medical needs
exist for SyB L-0501 and SyB D-0701 in these countri§e also plan to develop and market SyB L-1101Ctlin South
Korea other than Japan. We will aggressively lawdictical trials and apply for marketing approvaighese Asian countries.

(iv) Securing people
SymBio places the highest priority on people actirapany management resource. We cannot make superio
achievements in exploring and developing new dwigsout talent. Also, a company that considerslm#nsing drug
candidates to us critically evaluates the qualitgwr people in due-diligence. Hence, we plan tthier strengthen our human
resources by continually recruiting talent and ptmg development programs such as OJT and otaigings.

(v) Financial issue
There is a possibility that the Company raises furatessary for business activities such as R&D alipers externally
as the pipeline development progresses and theetwfldrug candidates increases. Therefore, we revadigy effort to
strengthen the financial base by continually difgrsy the method for fund procurement and reduanogts through and
thorough budget control.

(6) Other important matters concerning the compaagpagement
(i) Third-party allotment
The Company made a resolution in December 2013t ignsecured convertible bond with stock acqarsitights by
way of third-party allotment and warrant in ordeisecure funds necessary for R&D activities.
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4. Financial statements
(1) Balance sheets

(Unit: Thousand yen)

(As of December 31, 201

FY 2011

FY 201:

(As of December 31, 201

Assets
Current assets
Cash and deposits
Accounts receivable-trade
Marketable securities
Merchandise and finished goods
Supplies
Prepaid expenses
Advances paid
Consumption taxes receivable
Forward exchange contracts
Other
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings, net
Tools, furniture and fixtures
Accumulated depreciation
Tools, furniture and fixtures, net
Total property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Software
Lease assets
Total intangible assets
Investments and other assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Lease and guarantee deposits
Total investments and other assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

4,558,714 4,540,022
162,409 148,081
1,952,533 300,000
207,467 164,571

— 320
79,038 98,192
124,589 99,036
69,571 39,495

— 21,385
24,067 9,517
7,178,392 5,420,623
7,358 7,705
(4,889) (5,067)
2,468 2,637
32,410 33,921
(17,471) (22,837)
14,938 11,084
17,407 13,721
9,541 8,324
3,189 2,540
12,730 10,864
24,300 27,646
23,264 29,334
47,564 56,980
77,702 81,567
7,256,094 5,502,190
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(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 201:
(As of December 31, 2011) (As of December 31, 2012)

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable-trade 308,953 329,768
Lease obligations 719 673
Accounts payable-other 277,898 195,833
Income taxes payable 19,073 15,588
Advances received 1,382 —
Other 37,719 56,662
Total current liabilities 645,746 598,527
Noncurrent liabilities
Lease obligations 2,691 2,017
Provision for retirement benefits 2,092 1,688
Total noncurrent liabilities 4,783 3,705
Total liabilities 650,529 602,232
Net assets
Shareholders' equity
Capital stock 6,024,610 6,024,610
Capital surplus
Legal capital surplus 5,994,610 5,994,610
Total capital surplus 5,994,610 5,994,610
Retained earnings
Other retained earnings
Retained earnings brought forward (5,413,091) (7,146,411)
Total retained earnings (5,413,091) (7,146,411)
Treasury stock 17 17
Total shareholders' equity 6,606,110 4,872,790
Valuation and translation adjustments
Valua_ti_on difference on available-for-sale (546) _
securities
Total valuation and translation adjustments (546) —
Subscription rights to shares — 27,167
Total net assets 6,605,564 4,899,957
Total liabilities and net assets 7,256,094 5,502,190
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(2) Statements of income

Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 201:
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012

to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)

Net sales
Net sales of goods
Rights income

Total net sales

Cost of sales
Beginning goods
Cost of purchased goods

Total

Transfer to other account*3
Ending goods

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses *1,2,3

Operating loss

Non-operating income
Interest income
Interest on securities
Insurance and dividends income
Subsidy income
Other

Total non-operating income

Non-operating expenses
Interest expenses
Commission fee
Stock issuance cost
Foreign exchange losses
Going public expenses
Bond-issue expenses
Other

Total non-operating expenses

Ordinary loss

Extraordinary loss
Loss on retirement of noncurrent assets *4
Impact of application of accounting standard fareds
retirement obligations

Total extraordinary losses

Loss before income taxes

Income taxes-current

Total income taxes

Net loss

1,632,471 1,955,178
250,050 —
1,882,521 1,955,178
— 207,467
1,433,633 1,321,514
1,433,633 1,528,982
1,981 2,211
207,467 164,571
1,224,185 1,362,199
658,336 592,979
2,725,182 2,293,253
(2,066,846) (1,700,273)
863 1,585
2,559 3,353
1,044 1,122
51,891 -
23 1,247
56,382 7,309
668 137
21,967 10,829
16,721 —
9,895 15,755
35,665 -
— 9,473
— 320
84,919 36,516
(2,095,382) (1,729,480)
- 39
5,331 —
5,331 39
(2,100,713) (1,729,520)
3,800 3,800
3,800 3,800
(2,104,513) (1,733,320)
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(3) Statements of changes in net assets
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 201:
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012

to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)

Shareholders' equity
Capital stock

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,710,830 6,024,610
Changes of items during the year
Issuance of new shares 2,313,780 —
Total changes of items during the year 2,313,780 —
Balance at the end of the year 6,024,610 6,024,610
Capital surplus
Legal capital surplus
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,680,830 5,994,610
Changes of items during the year
Issuance of new shares 2,313,780 —
Total changes of items during the year 2,313,780 —
Balance at the end of the year 5,994,610 5,994,610
Total capital surplus
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,680,830 5,994,610
Changes of items during the year
Issuance of new shares 2,313,780 —
Total changes of items during the year 2,313,780 —
Balance at the end of the year 5,994,610 5,994,610
Retained earnings
Other retained earnings
Retained earnings brought forward
Balance at the beginning of the year (3,308,577) (5,413,091)
Changes of items during the year
Net loss (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
Total changes of items during the year (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
Balance at the end of the year (5,413,091) (7,146,411)
Total retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (3,308,577) (5,413,091)
Changes of items during the year
Net loss (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
Total changes of items during the year (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
Balance at the end of the year (5,413,091) (7,146,411)
Treasury stock
Balance at the beginning of the year — 17)
Changes of items during the year
Acquisition of treasury stock 17 —
Total changes of items during the year a7 —
Balance at the end of the year (17) (17)
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(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012

to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)

Total shareholders' equity

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,083,082 6,606,110
Changes of items during the year
Issuance of new shares 4,627,560 —
Net loss (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
Acquisition of treasury stock an) —
Total changes of items during the year 2,523,028 (1,733,320)
Balance at the end of the year 6,606,110 4,872,790
Valuation and translation adjustments
Valuation difference on available-for-sale secasiti
Balance at the beginning of the year (18) (546)
Changes of items during the year
Net _changes of items other than shareholders (527) 546
equity
Total changes of items during the year (527) 546
Balance at the end of the year (546) —
Total valuation and translation adjustments
Balance at the beginning of the year (18) (546)
Changes of items during the year
Net _changes of items other than shareholders (527) 546
equity
Total changes of items during the year (527) 546
Balance at the end of the year (546) —
Subscription rights to shares
Balance at the beginning of the year — —
Changes of items during the year
Net .changes of items other than shareholders' - 27,167
equity
Total changes of items during the year — 27,167
Balance at the end of the year — 27,167
Total net assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,083,064 6,605,564
Changes of items during the year
Issuance of new shares 4,627,560 —
Net loss (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
Acquisition of treasury stock an —
Net _changes of items other than shareholders (527) 27,713
equity
Total changes of items during the year 2,522,500 (1,705,606)
Balance at the end of the year 6,605,564 4,899,957
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(4) Statements of cash flows

Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 201:
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012

to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Loss before income taxes
Depreciation
Amortization of guarantee deposits
Impact of application of accounting standard fareds
retirement obligations
Share-based compensation expenses
Increase (decrease) in provision for retiremenebtn
Interest income
Interest expenses
Foreign exchange losses (gains)
Stock issuance cost
Commission fee
Loss on retirement of noncurrent assets
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-trade
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase ) in prepaid expenses
Decrease (increase) in advances paid
Decrease (increase) in consumption taxes receivable
Decrease (increase) in other current assets
Decrease (increase) in long-term prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable-trade
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable-other
Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes
Increase (decrease) in advances received
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Other

Subtotal

Interest and dividends income received
Commitment fees paid

Interest expenses paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Decrease (increase) in time deposits
Purchase of marketable securities
Proceeds from redemption of securities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Payments for lease and guarantee deposits
Proceeds from collection of lease and guarantee
deposits

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(2,100,713) (1,729,520)
8,167 8,560
2,398 1,444
5,331 —

— 27,167
257 (404)
(3,422) (4,938)
668 137
23,647 1,630
16,721 -
21,967 10,829
— 39
(156,474) 14,328
(207,467) 42,895
11,728 (19,183)
(38,507) 25,552
(69,571) 30,076
(20,592) (7,156)
(24,300) (3,346)
®07,7 20,814
a%3,7 (82,105)
(8,107) -
- (1,382)
8889 15,458
404 291
(2,062,451) (1,648,808)
3,688 4,917
(10,829) (10,800)
(664) (96)
(3,800) (3,800)
(2,074,057) (1,658,588)
- (300,000)
(201,283) (300,000)
100,000 200,000
(1,422) (1,858)
(10,940) (1,190)
(4,257) (8,105)
546 590
(117,356) (410,563)
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(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012

to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Repayments for lease obligations — (719)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 4,627,560 —
Payments for issuance of common stock (16,721) —
Payments for acquisition of treasury stock (17) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 4,610,820 (719)
Effe.ct of foreign exchange rate change on caslcas (24,193) (1,084)
equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 2,395,213 (2,070,956)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 9153765 6,310,978
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period* 6,380,9 4,240,022

(5) Events and conditions with indicate therelddne substantial doubt about going concern assompt

None to be reported.

(6) Significant Accounting Policies

1. Valuation basis and method of marketable and imvest securities

Available-for-sale securities with determinable kedrvalue
Available-for-sale securities with a determinablerket value are stated at fair value with any ckang
unrealized holding gain or loss, net of applicabtmme taxes, included directly in shareholdersiigg
Cost of securities sold is calculated by the mowagrage method.

Available-for-sale securities without determinabiarket value
Available-for-sale securities without determinatriarket value are stated at cost determined by the
moving average method.

2. Valuation basis and method of derivative transastio
Derivative financial instruments are stated at ¥aiue.

3. Valuation basis and method of inventories

Inventories held for the purpose of ordinary sateraeasured at lower of cost determined by the hted
average method or net selling value.

4. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(1) Property, plant and equipment (excluding lesssets)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ispated by the straight-line method.
The useful lives of major property, plant and eguémt are summarized as follows:
Buildings 2 to 18 years
Tools, furniture and fixtures 4 to 10 years
(2) Intangible assets (excluding lease assets)
Amortization of intangible assets is computed by dtraight-line method.
Capitalized software costs are being amortized theeperiod of the internal use of 5 years.
(3) Lease assets
Depreciation of lease assets is computed by th&hbtrline method over the lease term with no nasid
value.

5. Deferred assets
(1) Stock issuance costs are charged to income agéacur
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(2) Bond-issue expenses are charged to income aséacurr

6. Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated inifpreurrencies are translated into yen at the spcihange
rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates, auttirey gains or losses are credited or chargédctmme.

7. Basis for reserves and provisions

(1) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is providedrabmount determined based on the historical expesi
of bad debt with respect to ordinary receivablet @m estimate of uncollectible amounts determined b
reference to specific doubtful receivables fromtemeers which are experiencing financial difficuitie

For FY 2011 and FY 2012, no allowance for doubdftdounts is provided due to no historical expegearic
bad debt and no receivable balances that are deemeedlectible.
(2) Provision for retirement benefits

The provision for retirement benefits is providéca amount to be required as of the balance slaet

8. Cash and cash equivalents in the statements offlcash
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on basld,in banks which can be withdrawn at any time an
short-term investments with a maturity of three theror less that can easily be converted to cadlaen
subject to little risk of change in value.

9. Other significant basis for the preparation of ficial statements
Accounting for consumption tax
Transactions are recorded at amounts exclusivergfumption tax.

(7) Changes in presentation
“Insurance and dividends income” included in “Oth@mnder non-operating income for FY 2011 is showraa
separate line item for FY 2012 since the amoun¢eded 10% of total non-operating income. The ainoiun
“Dividends income of insurance” for FY 2011 was44dhousand yen.
(8) Notes to financial statements
(Balance sheets)
1. The Company has overdraft and commitment limgreots with three banks in a business relationghgdfficiently
procure working capital. The status of the bankrdradt and loan commitments based on these costedidhe end of

each fiscal year is as follows:
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(As of December 31, 2011) (As of December 31, 2012)
Total amoulnts of pank overdraft limit and 1,350,000 1,350,000
loan commitment line
Balance of borrowing outstanding — —
Unused balance 1,350,000 1,350,000

(Statements of income)
*1 Selling expense ratio is roughly 1.4% and 2.1%6r2011 and FY 2012, respectively, and administeati
expense ratio is roughly 98.6% and 97.9% for FY128id FY 2012, respectively.

Major expense items and amounts are as follows.
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(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012

(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012

to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)
Directors’ compensation 98,271 106,108
Salaries 265,620 305,679
Retirement benefit expenses 713 921
Research and development expenses 1,945,029 12838,1
Depreciation expenses 7,653 6,990

*2 Total amounts of research and development expénslesied in general and administrative expenses
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)
1,945,029 1,438,125

* 3 Details of transfer to other accounts are as falow
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)
Selling, general and administrat 1,081 Selling, general and administrative 2211
expense expenses

*4 Details of loss on retirement of noncurrent asastsas follows.
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)
Software — Software 39

(Statements of changes in net assets)
FY 2011 (From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011)
1. Shares issued and outstanding / Treasury stock
(Unit: Number of shares)

Ao eI ol ncrease Decrease | A end ofthe

Shares issued
Common stock (Note 1 111,737 19,019,163 — 19,130,900
Total 111,737 19,019,163 — 19,130,900

Treasury stock
Common stock (Note 2 — 75 — 75
Total — 75 — 75

(Note) 1. Increase in number of shares outstagndirtommon stock by 19,019,163 shares is due in@aase of
28,572 shares by new stock issuance by third-gdldgment, an increase of 5,100,000 shares by tevk s
issuance by offering and an increase of 13,890sb@tes by 100-for-1 stock split on June 2, 2011.
2. Increase in number of treasury stock of comstonk of 75 shares is due to the purchase ofifraaitshares.

2. Stock acquisition rights and treasury acquisitights
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Balance as ¢
Type of December 3!
Company Description shares to be Number of shares to be issued 2011
issued (Thousand
yer)
At the At the end
beginning of| Increase| Decrease|of the fisca
the fiscal yee yeal

The Stock acquisition rights
Company as stock options

Total — — — — —
(Note) The information about type of shares todseiéd and the number of shares to be issued islbzbin “Stock
options”.
3. Dividends

None to be reported.

FY 2012 (From January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012)
1. Shares issued and outstanding / Treasury stock
(Unit: Number of shares)

At the beginning of At the end of the
the fiscal year Increase Decrease fiscal year
Shares issued
Common stock 19,130,900 — — 19,130,900
Total 19,130,900 — — 19,130,900
Treasury stock
Common stock 75 — — 75
Total 75 — — 75
2. Stock acquisition rights and treasury acquisitights
Balance
f
Type of aso
Company Description shares to be Number of shares to be issued Dg(zelcezrgklagr
issued (Thousand
yer)
At the
oy At the end ¢
beginningof Increase Decrease the fiscal
the fiscal ear
yeal y
The Stock ach|§|t|on rights i - - - - 27,167
Company| as stock options
Total — — — — 27,167
(Note) The information about type of shares todseiéd and the number of shares to be issued islbzbin “Stock
options”.
3. Dividends

None to be reported.
(Statements of cash flows)

* Cash and cash equivalents as of the fiscal ye@draee reconciled to the accounts reported in dhenioe
sheets as follows:
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(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)

Cash and deposits 4,558,714 4,540,022
Marketable securities 1,952,533 300,000
Time deposits with maturities of more than threenthe — (300,000)

Debt securities with a remaining maturity in excefs
three month
Cash and cash equivalents 6,310,978 4,240,022

(200,270) (300,000)

(Lease transactions)
Finance lease transaction
Finance lease transactions other than those wtdakfer the ownership of leased property
(a) Description of lease assets
Intangible assets ---Software

(b) Depreciation and amortization of lease assets
Depreciation and amortization of lease assetsdsriteed in significant accounting policies “4.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment.”

(Financial instruments)
1. Financial instruments
(1) Policies for financial instruments
The Company procures the funds necessary in ligthteopipeline development plan (primarily by third
party allotment and offering by new stock issuanéemporary surplus fund is invested in financial
instruments which are highly safe and liquid.
As a principle, the Company does not enter intivdéve transactions for speculative trading pugos
but uses them within the scope prescribed in ttegnal rules.

(2)Types of financial instruments and related risks

Operating receivables such as accounts receivedde-aind advances paid in connection with joint
development are exposed to credit risk of custormedsjoint development partners. Operating recd@sb
denominated in foreign currencies are exposedrigo exchange fluctuation risk.

The Company intends to invest in marketable anddtment securities which have relatively low rigk o
falling below initial investments. However, it migtarry a finite risk.

Operating payables such as accounts payable-tratlacgounts payable-other are mostly due within
two months. Operating payables denominated indoreurrencies are exposed to foreign exchange
fluctuation risk.

The Company uses derivative transactions to awseidn exchange fluctuation risks and enters into
forward exchange contracts within the scope prieedrin the internal rules based on balances of
receivables and payables denominated in foreigrenaies as well as actual volume of exports and
imports transactions denominated in foreign curiesnc

Lease and guarantee deposits are mostly secuptsis related to rented office premises and their
refunds are subject to the credit risk of the lesso

Lease obligations are associated with the finagaed transactions that intend to finance capital
expenditures and the longest maturity of lease tednyears after December 31, 2012.

(3)Risk management for financial instruments
(a) Monitoring of credit risks (the risk that costers or counterparties may default)

In accordance with the internal credit policiesrftanaging credit risk arising from operating
receivables, the Company’s marketing departmernogieally monitors the credit worthiness of major
customers and monitors due dates and outstandiagdes by individual customer. In addition, the
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Company is making efforts to promptly identify amitigate risks of bad debts from customers who are
having financial difficulties.
The Company enters into derivative transactiong with financial institutions which have a sound
credit profile in order to mitigate the counterpyaisk.
(b) Monitoring of market risk (the risk arising frofluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interatds
and others)
The Company deposits cash primarily with finangiatitutions with high credit ratings.
For marketable and investment securities, the Cosnpaends to avoid risks of falling below initial
investments by investing in securities with theésfattory credit rating and investment period in
accordance with the internal investment policies.
The Company enters into forward exchange contiaasder to avoid foreign exchange fluctuation
risks in connection with receivables and payabtrsdinated in foreign currencies.
Followed by appropriate authorization proceduresgribed in the internal rules, Finance and
accounting department executes and monitors demvransactions. Monthly transaction performaces
are reported to the executive management committee.

(c) Monitoring of liquidity risks (the risk that éhCompany may not be able to meet its obligations o
scheduled due date)
Based on the report from each department, the nsgigle department of the Company prepares and
updates its cash flow plans on a timely basis aisdires to maintain liquidity on hand to manage
liquidity risk.

(4)Supplementary explanation of the estimatedvaliue of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is basedlwir quoted market price, if available. When éhisr
no quoted market price available, fair value isoe@bly estimated. Since various assumptions and
factors are reflected in estimating the fair valliéferent assumptions and factors could result in
different fair value. In addition, the notional anmts of derivatives in notes to “Derivative trartgams”
are not necessarily indicative of the actual marisitinvolved in derivative transactions.

(5)Concentration of credit risk
As of December 31, 2012, all operating receivablesfrom one particular major customer.

2. Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying value on the balance sheets, fair valudslaeir differences are as follows. The finangiatruments whose
fair value is extremely difficult to determine aret included. (See (Note) 2.)
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FY 2011 (As of December 31, 2011)
(Unit: Thousand yen)

Carrying value Fair value Differences

(1) Cash and deposits 4,558,714 4,558,714
(2) Accounts receivable-trade 162,409 162,409
(3) Marketable securities 1,952,533 1,952,533
(4) Advances paid 124,589 124,584
(5) Consumption taxes receivable 69,571 69,571

Assets, total 6,867,818 6,867,814
(1) Accounts payable-trade 308,953 308,953
(2) Lease obligations (current) 719 719
(3) Accounts payable-other 277,898 277,899
(4) Income taxes payable 19,073 19,073
(5) Lease obligations (non-current) 2,691 2,691

Liabilities, total 609,336 609,334

Derivative transactions, total — —
FY 2012 (As of December 31, 2012)

(Unit: Thousand yen)
Carrying value Fair value Differences

(1) Cash and deposits 4,540,022 4,540,022
(2) Accounts receivable-trade 148,081 148,081
(3) Marketable securities 300,000 300,000
(4) Advances paid 99,086 99,036
(5) Consumption taxes receivable 39,495 39,495

Assets, total 5,126,635 5,126,634
(1) Accounts payable-trade 329,168 329,768
(2) Lease obligations (current) 673 673
(3) Accounts payable-other 195,833 195,834
(4) Income taxes payable 15,588 15,588
(5) Lease obligations (non-current) 2,017 2,017

Liabilities, total 543,882 543,887

Derivative transactions, total (*1 21,385 21,385

(*1) Net assets and liabilities arising from dative transactions are presented on a net basis.

(Note) 1. Fair value measurement of financial instents and other matters related to securitieslaridative

transactions
Assets
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(1) Cash and deposits, (2) Accounts receivableirét) Advances paid and (5) Consumption taxesvailke
The carrying value is deemed as the fair valueesihese are scheduled to be settled in a shoddoefi
time.

(3) Marketable securities
The fair value of debt securities is based on timteq price obtained from financial institutiorfS8ee notes
to “Marketable and investment securities” for ngiestaining to securities by holding purpose.

Liabilities
(1) Accounts payable-trade, (3) Accounts payablheoand (4) Income taxes payable
The carrying value is deemed as the fair valueesihese are scheduled to be settled in a shoddoefi
time.

(2) Lease obligations (current) and (5) Leasegalibns (non-current)
The fair value of lease obligations, that is detasd at present value calculated by discounting rhounts
of principle and interests at a presumable ratd fesimilar new lease transactions.

Derivative transactions
See notes to “Derivative transactions”

2. Financial instruments whose fair value is exgbndifficult to determine.
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(As of December 31, 2011) (As of December 31, 2012)

Lease and guarantee deposits 23,264 29,334

Lease and guarantee deposits are not includeiweahbles since no market quote is available heid tair
value is extremely difficult to determine.

3. The redemption schedule for monetary assetseeutities with maturities
FY 2011 (As of December 31, 2011)
(Unit: Thousand yen)

. Due after one| Due after five
Due in one yea . Due after ten
year through five years through tep
or less years
years years

Deposits 4,558,543 — — —

Accounts receivable-trade 162,409 — — —
Securities

Available-for-securities with maturities

(1) Debt securities 200,000 — — —

(2) Other 1,752,263 — — —

Advances paid 124,589 — — —

Total 6,797,805 — — —
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FY 2012 (As of December 31, 2012)
(Unit: Thousand yen)

. Due after one | Due after five
Due in one yea . Due after ten
year through five years through tep
or less years
years years

Deposits 4,539,911 — — —

Accounts receivable-trade 148,081 — — —
Securities

Available-for-securities with maturities

Others 300,00d — — —

Advances paid 99,036 — — —

Total 5,087,032 — — —

4. Maturities of lease obligations after the fispahr end
FY 2011 (As of December 31, 2011)

(Unit: Thousand yen)
. Due after ong| Due after two|Due after thre¢ Due after four i
Due in one Due after five
year through | years through years through years through
year or less ) years
two years three years | four years five years
Lease obligations 719 _ _ _ _ _
(current)
Lease obligations
. — 673 682 692 642 —
(non-current portion
Total 719 673 682 692 642 —
FY 2012 (As of December 31, 2012)
(Unit: Thousand yen)
. Due after one| Due after two|Due after threg Due after four )
Due in one Due after five
year through | years through years through years through
year or less ) years
two years three years | four years five years
Lease obligations 673 - - - - -
(current)
Lease obligations - 682 692 642 _ _
(non-current)
Total 673 682 692 642 — —
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(Marketable and investment securities)
1. Available-for-sale securities

FY 2011 (As of Decemb

er 31, 2011)

Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

(Unit: Thousand yen)

Type

Carrying value

Acquisition cost

Difference

Carrying value does nq
exceed the acquisitio
cost

(1)Equity securities

(2)Debt securities

(a) Government
and municipal
bond

(b) Corporate bon
(c) Other
(3)Other

5~

e

200,270

1,752,263

200,816

1,752,263

(546)

Total

1,952,533

1,953,079

(546)

FY 2012 (As of December 31, 2012)

(Unit: Thousand yen)

Type

Carrying value

Acquisition cost

Difference

Carrying value does nq
exceed the acquisitio
cost

(1)Equity securities

(2)Debt securities

t (a) Government
and municipal
bond

N

(b) Corporate bond — — —
(c) Other 300,00( 300,000 —
(3)Other — — —
Total 300,000 300,000 -
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2. Available-for-sale securities sold
FY 2011 (From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011)
None to be reported.

FY 2012 (From January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012)
(Unit: Thousand yen)

Type Proceeds Realized gains Realized losses

(1)Equity securities — — _
(2)Debt securities

(a) Government and
municipal bond

(b) Corporate bond — — —

(c) Other — _ .
3)Other 1,853,428 — —
(

Total 1,853,428 — —

(Derivative transactions)
1. Derivative transactions to which hedge accognmot applied
Currency-related transaction

FY 2011 (As of December 31, 2011)
None to be reported.

FY 2012 (As of December 31, 2012)
(Unit: Thousand yen

Portion due
Classification Type Notional amounafter one year Fair value Difference
included herein

Forward exchang
contrac

OTC transactions Buy

Euro 242,021 - 21,385 (21,385)

Total 242,027 — 21,385 (21,385)

(Note) Fair value measurement
The fair value is measured based on the quotedgabtained from financial institutions with busise
relationship.

2. Derivative transactions to which hedge accogrisrapplied
None to be reported.
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(Retirement benefits)
1. Outline of retirement benefit plans
The Company has adopted a lump-sum payment plardefned benefit plan and a defined contributiengion plan
as a defined contribution plan.

2. Retirement benefit obligation
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 201:
(As of December 31, (As of December 31,
201)) 2012
(1) Retirement benefit obligation (2,092) (1,688)
(2) Provision for retirement benefits (2,092) (1,688)

(Note) The simplified method is applied to calculate antewf retirement benefit obligation. That is, thecaunts
shown as retirement benefit obligation are the paysirequired for voluntary retirement as of eastaf
year end.

3. Retirement benefit expenses
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)
Retirement benefit expenses 1,750 2,133
(1) Service costs 395 311
(2) Cpntnbutmn made for defined contribution 1.355 1.822
pension plan

4. Assumption used in accounting for retirementieobligation
Actuarial assumption is omitted since the Compapplias the simplified method.

(Stock options)
1. The account name and the amount of stock optibasgged as expenses
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)

Selling, general and

C : - 27,167
administrative expenses
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2. Description of stock options/ Changes in the sizstock options
(1) Description of stock options

The P Series

The ™ Series

Individuals covered by the
plan and number of person
granted

| the Company
” Employees of the Company 6

Directors of the Company 3
Auditor & supervisory board member of
1

12
22

External collaborators
Total

External collaborator 1

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

D

Common stock 390,000 shares

Common stock Zbakkes

Grant date

June 20, 2005

June 22, 2005

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company'’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

tus

or

e
Same as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Samea the left

Exercise period

From June 21, 2007 to June 20, 2015

From June 23, 2007 to June 22, 2015

The 5" Series

The B Series

Individuals covered by th
plan and number of persog
granted

Directors of the Company 1
Employees of the Companyl6
External collaborators 1

Total 18

Auditors & supervisory board membes§
the Company 1
Employees of the Company 3
External collaborators 6

Total 10

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 117,000 shares

Common stock5,000 shares

Grant date

January 31, 2006

April 18, 2006

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

tus

or

e
Same as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From February 1, 2008 to September 1
2015

From April 19, 2008 to March 30, 2016

-34 -



SymBio Pharmaceuticals Limited (4582) Summary ofFcial Statements [Japanese GAAP] (Non-consotijlate
Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

The 7" Series

The BSeries

Individuals covered by the
plan and number of person
granted

D

Directors of the Company 6
Auditors & supervisory board members
the Company 2
Employees of the Company 16
External collaborators 9

Total 33

0If:'mployees of the Company 6

5
11

External collaborators
Total

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 200,000 shares

Common stock2,000 shares

Grant date

July 1, 2006

December 4, 2006

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

tus

or

e
Same as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From July 2, 2008 to March 30, 2016

From December 2, 2008 to March 30, 2

D16

The 9" Series

The 1 Series

Individuals covered by th
plan and number of persg
granted

Directors of the Company 3
Auditors & supervisory board membes§
the Company 2

Total 5

Employees of the Company 6
External collaborators 3
Total 9

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 66,000 shares

Common stocB4,000 shares

Grant date

February 1, 2007

March 15, 2007

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

tus

or

e
Same as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From January 24, 2009 to January 23,
2017

From March 3, 2009 to March 2, 2017
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The 12" Series

The 13Series

Individuals covered by th
plan and number of persg
granted

Directors of the Company 5
Auditor & supervisory board membef
the Company 1

Total 6

Employees of the Company 33
External collaborators 12
Total 45

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 82,000 shares

Common stock 70,000 shares

Grant date

August 29, 2007

August 29, 2007

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

tus

or

e
Same as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From August 29, 2009 to AugustZfg,7

From August 29, 2009 to August 28, 20
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The 14" Series

The 16Series

Individuals covered by th
plan and number of persg
granted

Directors of the Company 5
Auditor & supervisory board membef
the Company 1

Total 6

E

xternal collaborators 14

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 207,000 shares

Common stocB5,000 shares

Grant date

October 1, 2008

October 1, 2008

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

or

e
S

tus

ame as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From October 1, 2010 to September 30
2018

F

2018

rom October 1, 2010 to September 30

The 17" Series

The 19Series

Individuals covered by the
plan and number of person
granted

)

D

Directors of the Company 3
Auditor & supervisory board member of
the Company 1

Total 4

E

xternal collaborators 2

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

14

Common stock 72,000 shares

Common stock?2,500 shares

Grant date

March 18, 2009

March 18, 2009

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

or

e

tus

Same as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From March 19, 2011 to March 18,20

From March 19, 2011 to March 18, 201
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The 20" Series The Z1Series

Directors of the Company 6

Individuals covered by the | Auditor & supervisory board member of

plan and number of person Employees of the Company 50

" the Company 1
granted Total 7
Class and number of sharep
to be issued upon the Common stock 361,000 shares Common stocB26,500 shares
exercise of the stock option
Grant date March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010

1. The persons granted must be in a stgtus
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor|or
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires dyie

Vesting condition to the expiry of her/his term or the | Same as on the left
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or if
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed pn
a stock exchange.

Vesting period Vesting period is not fixed. Same@aghe left

Exercise period From April 1, 2012 to March 31, @02 | From April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2020
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The 22° Series

The 2%3Series

Individuals covered by the
plan and number of persor
granted

<Fxternal collaborators

13

Employees of the Company

9

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 153,000 shares

Common stocB2,000 shares

Grant date

March 31, 2010

October 15, 2010

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

or

e
S

tus

ame as on the left

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2020

2

From OctobBr 2012 to October 14,
020

The 24" Series

The 3%Series

Individuals covered by the
plan and number of person
granted

5

Directors of the Company 5

Employees of the Company

59

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 192,000 shares

Common stock95,000 shares

Grant date

March 31, 2011

March 31, 2011

Vesting condition

1. The persons granted must be in a stg
of the Company’s director, auditor &
supervisory board member, advisor
employee at the time of exercise.
However, this is not necessarily the
case if the person granted retires du
to the expiry of her/his term or the
compulsory retirement, if otherwise
the board of directors approves, or
the person granted is an external
collaborator.

2. The Company’s stock must be listed
a stock exchange.

tu

e

or

Same as on the left

S

Vesting period

Vesting period is not fixed.

Sam®aghe left

Exercise period

From March 31, 2013 to March 3@120

From March 31, 2013 to March 30, 202
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The 26 Series

The 27Series

Individuals covered by the
plan and number of person
granted

5 Directors of the Company 4

Employees of the Company

70

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

14

Common stock 362,500 shares

Common stock30,700 shares

Grant date

May 2, 2012

May 2, 2012

Vesting condition

No specific conditions are prescribed in the
allotment agreement of stock acquisition rig
entered between the Company and the perg
granted, except for certain vesting condition
stipulated in the exercise condition. The
exercise conditions are described in *(1) to

nts

172}

6).

%8ame as on the left

Vesting period

The period that fulfills the requirement of thg
exercise condition* (2) and (3).

Same as on the left

Exercise period

From April 18, 2014 to April 17,220

From April 18, 2014 to April 17, 2022

The 28 Series

Individuals covered by the
plan and number of person
granted

5 Employees of the Company 5

Class and number of share
to be issued upon the
exercise of the stock option

5

Common stock 16,500 shares

Grant date

September 28, 2012

Vesting condition

No specific conditions are prescribed in the
allotment agreement of stock acquisition rig
entered between the Company and the perg
granted, except for certain vesting condition
stipulated in the exercise condition. The
exercise conditions are described in *(1) to

Vesting period

The period that fulfills the requirement of thg
exercise condition *(2) and (3).

Exercise period

From September 14, 2014 to Septembsg

=

13, 2022

% (1) Fraction less than one unit of a stock acqoisitight shall be un-exercisable.

(2) Those who were granted the right may exerdisar part of the rights in accordance with thddaling classifications:

< The 26" Series and the ¥7Series stock option

@

April 18, 2014 to April 17, 2015.

(b)
18, 2015 to April 17,

(©

2016.

April 18, 2016 to April 17, 2017

(d)

< The 28" Series stock o

ptionr

Those who were granted the stock acquisition rigiag exercise the rights within the limit of onefth (1/4) from
Those who were granted the stock acquisition rigkag exercise the rights within the limit of ondft{a/2) from April
Those who were granted the stock acquisition rigiag exercise the rights within the limit of thrieexths (3/4) from

Those who were granted the stock acquisition rigkag exercise all the rights from April 18, 2017April 17, 2022

(@) Those who were granted the stock acquisition rigiag exercise the rights within the limit of onesfth (1/4) from
September,14, 2014 to September 13, 2015.
(b) Those who were granted the stock acquisition rigiag exercise the rights within the limit of ondfi{&/2) from
September 14, 2015 to September 13, 2016
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(c) Those who were granted the stock acquisition rigiag exercise the rights within the limit of thrieewths (3/4) from
September 14, 2016 to September 13, 2017
(d) Those who were granted the stock acquisition sighay exercise all the rights from September 14726 September
13, 2022

(3) Those who received the allotment of the stamjussition rights (hereinafter the "“Person Grafitedust be in a status of the
director, auditor & supervisory board member or lyge of the Company or its affiliates at the tiniexercise. However,
this is not necessarily the cases where;

(@) The Person Granted is the director or auditor &esuipory board membe of the Company or its affifaad retires due
to the expiry of her/his term.

(b) The Person Granted is the employee of the Compaity affiliates and retires due to the compuls@tyrement.

(c) The Person Granted is the director, auditor & suipery board member or employee of the Companysaafitliates and
the board of directors resolves that he/she regignstires with honorable recognition.

(4) The Person Granted shall exercise the rightsirsg from the date of resolution by the belowntiened stockholders’ meeting
or the board of directors’ meeting until one dafobethe effective date of the Organizational Restming as followed,
regardless the conditions of exercise period oaigyrstipulated, when the Organizational Restruoiare approved by the
resolution of the Company’s stockholders’ meetimgl(iding the case where resolution of a stockhsldeeeting is deemed
to exist pursuant to the provision of Article 31ftlee Companies Act) or the board of directors’ rimggflimited to the case
where no stockholders’ meeting is required forghiel Organizational Restructuring) before the exserperiod (hereinafter
“Exercise Period”) of the stock acquisition riglstames into effect: an absorption-type merger anaarporation-type
merger where the Company becomes a dissolving corgrahan absorption-type split or an incorporatigme company
split where the Company becomes a split companyshage exchange or a share transfer where the Cgrbpanmes a
wholly-owned subsidiary (collectively, “Organizatial Restructuring” as mentioned above).

(5) In the event where;
(a) The Person Granted died before the exercisedpeomes into effect, the inheritor shall exerdtse rights of up to one-half
(1/2) within six months from the date of inherited,
(b) The Person Granted died during the exerciseghethe inheritor shall exercise all the rightishin six months from the date
of inherited.
However, in the event that the inheritor died, rilsats shall be discarded and shall not be exatdigehis/her inheritor.

(6) The stock acquisition rights shall not be afffor pledge or disposed of in any other way.
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(2) Change in the size of stock options

Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

The number of stock option is convereted into thmier of shares subjest to the numbers exist irDE2 2

(a) Number of stock options

(Unit: Number of shares)

The ' Series

The " Series

The A Series

The B Series

Grant date

June 20, 2005

June 22, 200

5 DecemB605,

January 31, 2006

Non-vested shares:

At the beginning of the year

Granted

Expired

Vested

At the end of the year

Vested shares:

At the beginning of the year 361,000 2,000 5,000 84,500
Vested — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Expired 10,000 — 5,000 82,500
At the end of the year 351,000 2,000 — 2,000
(Unit: Number of shares)
The &" Series The 7 Series The'8Series The 9 Series
Grant date April 18, 2006 July 1, 2006 Decembe006 | February 1, 2007
Non-vested shares:
At the beginning of the year — — — —
Granted — — — —
Expired — — — —
Vested — — — —
At the end of the year — — — —
Vested shares:
At the beginning of the year 13,000 156,000 19,000 54,000
Vested — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Expired 11,000 95,000 18,000 51,000
At the end of the year 2,000 61,000 1,000 3,000
(Unit: Number of shares)

The 10" Series

The 11 Series

The 12Series

The 13Series

Grant date

February 1, 200f March 15, 2007

August 29, 2001

4

August 29, 2007

Non-vested shares:

At the beginning of the year

Granted

Expired

Vested

At the end of the year

Vested shares:

At the beginning of the year 24,000 25,000 73,000 121,000
Vested — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Expired 24,000 18,000 50,000 60,000
At the end of the year — 7,000 23,000 61,000
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(Unit: Number of share

The 14" Series

The 15 Series

The 16Series

The 17 Series

Grant date

October 1, 2009

October 1, 20(

8 October 1, 2008

March 18, 2009

Non-vested shares:

At the beginning of the year

Granted

Expired

Vested

At the end of the year

Vested shares:

At the beginning of the year 187,000 139,000 85,000 71,000
Vested — — — —
Exercised — — — —
Expired 159,000 139,000 15,000 67,000
At the end of the year 28,040 — 70,000 4,000

(Unit: Number of shares)

The 18 Series The 19Series The 20Series The 2f' Series
Grant date March 18, 2009 March 18, 2009 March2810 March 31, 2010
Non-vested shares:
At the beginning of the year — 361,000 276,500
Granted — — —
Expired — — — —
Vested — 361,000 276,500
At the end of the year — — — —
Vested shares:
At the beginning of the year 80,000 12,500 — —
Vested — — 361,000 276,500
Exercised — — —
Expired 80,000 10,000 — 17,000
At the end of the year — 2,500 361,000 259,500
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(Unit: Number of shares)

The 229 Series The 23Series The 22 Series The 25Series
Grant date March 31, 2010| October 15, 2010] March 31, 2011 March 31, 2011
Non-vested shares:
At the beginning of the year 153,000 32,000 192,000 192,000
Granted — — — —
Expired — — — 7,000
Vested 153,000 32,000 — —
At the end of the year — — 192,000 185,000
Vested shares:
At the beginning of the year — — — —
Vested 153,000 32,000 — —
Exercised — — — —
Expired — — — —
At the end of the year 153,000 32,000 — —

(Unit: Number of shares)

The 26" Series

The 27Series

The ?8Series

Grant date May 2, 2012 May 2, 2012 September 282 PO
Non-vested shares:
At the beginning of the year — — —
Granted 362,50( 430,700 16,500
Expired — 29,300 —
Vested — — —
At the end of the year 362,500 401,400 16,500

Vested shares:

At the beginning of the year

Vested

Exercised

Expired

At the end of the year
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(b) Per share prices

The F' Series The'? Series The B Series The B Series
Grant date June 20, 2005 June 22, 200% JanuaB086, April 18, 2006
Exercise price (yen) 50 500 1,000 1,000
Average stock price at the
time of exercise (yen) B B B B
Fair value price at grant date - - - -
(yen)

The 7" Series The BSeries The 9 Series The 11 Series
Grant date July 1, 2006 December 4, 2006February 1, 2007 March 15, 2007
Exercise price (yen) 1,50 1,500 1,500 1,500
Average stock price at the
time of exercise (yen) B B B B
Fair value price at grant date 0 0 0 0

(yen)

The 12 Series

The 13Series

The 12 Series

The 16Series

Grant date August 29, 2007, August 29, 20Q7 Oct@b2n08 October 1, 2008
Exercise price (yen) 1,50 1,500 1,200 1,200
Average stock price at the - - - -

time of exercise (yen)

Fair value price at grant date 0 0 0 0

(ven)

The 17" Series

The 19Series

The 2DSeries

The 2% Series

Grant date March 18, 2009 March 18, 2009 March?810 March 31, 2010
Exercise price (yen) 1,20 1,200 600 600
Average stock price at the _ _ _ _
time of exercise (yen)

Fair value price at grant date 0 0 0 0

(ven)

The 229 Series

The 23 Series

The 22 Series

The 25Series

Grant date March 31, 2010 October 15, 2010 Mafch?811 March 31, 2011
Exercise price (yen) 60 600 700 700
Average stock price at the B B B B
time of exercise (yen)

Fair value price at grant date 0 0 0 0

(yen)

The 26" Series

The 27Series

The 28Series

Grant date May 2, 2012 May 2, 2012 September 282 20
Exercise price (yen) 57 570 570
Average stock price at the - - -
time of exercise (yen)
Fair value price at grant date (a) 179 (a) 179 (a) 203
(yen) (b) 187 (b) 187 (b) 208

(c) 195 (c) 195 (c) 213

(d) 202 (d) 202 (d) 217

Note) Each of (a), (b), (c) and (d) above is correspogdin(a), (b), (c) and (d) of exercise period ie table shown on 2 (1).
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3. Method for estimating the fair value of stockiops
The method for estimating the fair value of stopkians that were granted in the"™2@7" and 28' Series during this
fiscal year is estimated based on the followinghoet
The 26" Series
Black-Scholes
option pricing
model

The 27Series The ?8Series

(a) Estimate technique used Same as on the leff Same as on the left

(b) Major assumptions and
estimate method
Volatility of stock price
(Note 2)

73.066% 73.066% 127.923%

Estimated remaining
outstanding period
(Note 3)

(a) 5.96 years
(b) 6.46 years
(c) 6.96 years
(d) 7.46 years

(a) 5.96 years
(b) 6.46 years
(c) 6.96 years
(d) 7.46 years

(a) 5.96 years
(b) 6.46 years
(c) 6.96 years
(d) 7.46 years

Estimated dividend

0 yen per shar¢ 0 yen per shar¢ 0 yen per shar¢

(Note 4)

Risk free interest rate (@) 0.370% (a) 0.370% (a) 0.288%

(Note 5) (b) 0.440% (b) 0.440/ (b) 0.344%
(c) 0.494% (c) 0.494% (c) 0.40%%
(d) 0.550% (d) 0.550% (d) 0.464%

Note: 1.Each of (a), (b), (c) and (d) above is correspagdin(a), (b), (c) and (d) of exercise period ia thble shown on 2 (1).
2. The calculation was made based on the histastoak quotes by each classification below.
<The 26" Series and the ¥'Series stock optich
The calculation was made based on the historioaksjuotes during the period from May 3, 2010 toyMa2012.
Since the Company listed on the stock exchangeatob®r 20, 2011, stock quotes were not availabtanguhe period
from May 3, 2010 to October 19, 2011. The Compaigcied several companies which were very closesamblance
to the Company and used their historical quoteghi®iperiod.
< The 28" stock option>
The calculation was made based on the historioaksjuotes during the period from September 2902055eptember
28, 2012.
Since the Company listed on the stock exchangeatob®r 20, 2011, stock quotes were not availabtenduhe period
from September 29, 2010 to October 19, 2011. Theg@my selected several companies which were vesgéh
resemblance to the Company and used their histajicztes for the period.
3. Since it is very difficult to make reliable estites due to insufficient historical data, the reing period was calculated
based on the assumption that the rights were esegtén the middle of each exercise period.
4. The Company estimates dividends to be zero sioakvidends have been paid in the past.
5. It represents yields of Japanese governmentsboolesponding to estimated remaining outstangiénpd.

4. Estimation of the number of stock options vested
The number of expired shares is estimated basédednistorical turnover ratio.
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(Deferred tax accounting)

1. Significant components of deferred tax assetsliabilities
(Unit: Thousand yen)

FY 2011 Y2012
(As of December 31, (As of December 31,
2011 2012)
Deferred tax assets:
Excess depreciation for lump-sum depreciable 1,702 1,094
assets

Excess depreciation for depreciable assets 763 621
Excess amortization for deferred assets 265,563 212,730
Research and development expenses 345,528 836,309
Accounts payables-trade 7,737 14,899
Account payable-other 27,129 19,905
Provision for retirement benefits 745 601
Enterprise tax payable 6,988 5,203
Asset retirement obligation 2,751 3,143
Loss carried forward 1,343,142 1,454,943
Subtotal 2,002,052 2,549,452

Valuation allowance (2,002,052) (2,549,452)
Total deferred tax assets — —
Deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax liabilities — —
Net deferred tax ass — —

2. The reconciliation between the effective taxsatflected in the financial statements and thitsiry tax
rate is omitted since the Company reported lossrbeéhcome taxes for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2012.

(Equity in earnings)
None to be reported.

(Asset retirement obligations)
The Company has future restoration obligationgedl#o leasehold contracts of office premises.
Carrying the balance of lease and guarantee depssan assethe Company reasonably estimates non-
recoverable amounts of lease and guarantee depasdis lease contracts and records the amouriwthle
to the respective fiscal year as expenses, ingttadcounting for asset retirement obligationsdgognizing a
liability and an associated asset.

(Investment and rental property)
None to be reported.

(Segment information)
[ Segment informatioh
FY 2011 (From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 28ad)FY 2012 (From January 1, 2012 to December
31, 2012)
Segment information is omitted since the Compargraes a single segment of pharmaceutical
businesses including research and developmentashpteutical drugs as well as manufacturing and
marketing and other related activities.

-47 -



SymBio Pharmaceuticals Limited (4582) Summary ofFcial Statements [Japanese GAAP] (Non-consotijlate
Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012
[Related informatioh
FY 2011 (From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011)
1. Information by product and service
Information by product and service is omitted sieggernal sales of a single service category addoumore
than 90% of total net sales stated in the statemfantome.

2. Information about geographical area

(1) Net sales

Net sales information about geographical area igtednsince external sales to Japanese customess aicfor
more than 90% of total net sales stated in thesitant of income.

(2) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are located ipaia

3. Information by major customer
(Unit: Thousand yen)

Name of customgr  Net sales Name of related segment

Pharmaceutical businesses including research and
Eizai Co., Ltd. 1,872,471 | development of pharmaceutical drugs as well as
manufacturing marketing and other related actisitie

FY 2012 (From January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012)

1. Information by product and service

Information by product and service is omitted sieggernal sales of a single service category addoumore
than 90% of total net sales stated in the statemfantome.

2. Information about geographical area

(1) Net sales

Net sales information about geographical area igtednsince external sales to Japanese customess atcfor
more than 90% of total net sales stated in thestant of income.

(2) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are located ipala

3. Information by major customer
(Unit: Thousand yen)

Name of custom: Net sales Name of related segment

o

Pharmaceutical businesses including research an
Eizai Co., Ltd. 1,928,233 development of pharmaceutical drugs as well as
manufacturing marketing and other related actisitie

[Information about impairment loss on long-livedetssy reportable segmdnt
FY 2011 (From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2aad)FY 2012 (From January 1, 2012 to Decembe2312)
None to be reported.

[Information about the amortization and unamortizathnce of goodwill by reportable segmkent
FY 2011 (From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2aad)FY 2012 (From January 1, 2012 to Decembe2312)
None to be reported.

[ Information about the gain recognized on negativadgvill by reportable segmeht

FY 2011 (From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2a8ad)FY 2012 (From January 1, 2012 to Decembe2@12)
None to be reported.
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(Related parties information)
None to be reported.

(Per share information)

FY 2011
(From January 1, 2011
to December 31, 2011)

FY 2012
(From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2012)

Net assets per share 345.28 yen

Net loss per share (143.60) yen

While having potential dilutive stocks, diluted metome
per share is not provided since the Company regpore
loss per share.

On June 2, 2011, the Company conducted a 100-for-]
stock split. The following is the per share infation if
the stock split would have been conducted at the
beginning of the fiscal year.

Net assets per share 365.42 yen

Net loss per share (59.33) yen

While having potential dilutive stocks, diluted metome
per share is not provided since the Company regpore
loss per share.

Net assets per share 254.71 yen

Net loss per share (90.60) yen

While having potential dilutive stocks, diluted metome
per share is not provided since the Company regarwe
loss per share.

(Notel) The basis for calculating net loss persligmas follows:

(From January 1, 2011
to December 31, 2011)

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2012

to December 31, 2012)

Net loss (thousand yen) (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
Amount not attributable to the shareholders of _ -
common stock (thousand yen)

Net loss attributable to the shareholders of common (2,104,513) (1,733,320)
stock (thousand yen)

Average number of shares outstanding during the 14.655.716 19,130,825

year (shares)

Description of potential dilutive stocks not inckd
in the earning-per-share calculation due to anti-
dilutive.

24 types of Stock acquisition
rights (27,185 units) in
accordance with the
Commercial Code of 1890
Article 280 (20) and (21), and
Companies Act Article 236,
238, and 239.

23 types of Stock acquisition
rights (25,804 units) in
accordance with the
Commercial Code of 1890
Article 280 (20) and (21), and
Companies Act Article 236,
238, and 239.
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(Note?2) The basis for calculating net assets paresis as follows:

FY 2011 FY 2012
(From January 1, 2011 (From January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2011) to December 31, 2012)
Net assets (thousand yen) 6,605,564 4,899,957
Amount to be deducted from net assets — 27,167
Portion Stock acquisition right herein — 27,167

Net ts attributable to the sharehold f

et assets attributable to the shareholders o 6,605,564 4,872.790
common stock (thousand yen)
Number of shares used in the calculation of net 19,130,825 19,130,825
assets per share (shares)

(Significant subsequent events)

FY 2012 (As of December 31, 2012)
Issuance of the®lunsecured convertible bond with stock acquisitights and the 29Series stock option by
third party allotment

Based upon the resolution at the Company’s Boafdirefctors Meeting held on December 27, 2012, the
Company issued thé'Linsecured convertible bond with stock acquisitights and the 29Series stock
option on January 15, 2013 and has received theepds in the amount of 1,005,100 thousand yeneadme
date. The following summarizes the details.

(1) Purpose of the issuance
The issuance was made to procure funds for techpaevelopment of the existing pipeline and
implementation of new alternative technology, whielp achieve steady growth in the value of the

Company’s business.

(2) Outline of the issuance
(a) The % unsecured convertible bond with stock acquisitights

(1)The date of payment

January 15, 2013

(2)Total number of stock acquition rights 40

(3)The issue price of convertible boadd
stock acquisition rights

Issue price per convertible bond:

25 million yen (100 yen per par value of 100 yen)

No cash payment required for stock acquisitiontsgtssociated
with the convertible bond

(4)Number of potential dilutive shares

3,311,258 shares

(5)Amount of proceeds

1,000,000,000 yen

(6)Conversion price

302 yen

(7)Subscription or allotment
(Allotted party)

The convertible bond with stock acquisition riglstallotted to the
following party by third-party allotment:

Wiz Healthcare PE Series 1 Investment Limited LligbPartnershi
1,000,000,000 yen

=4

(8)Coupon The bond does not bear interest.
The preceding terms of subscription are conditicpain
(9)Other notification of such terms coming into force in amtance with the

Financial Instruments and Exchange Act.
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(b) The 29 Series stock option

(1)The date of allotment January 15, 2013
(2)Total number of stock acquisition rig| 50
(3)The issue price Total 5,100,000 yen (102,000p@meach stock acquisition right
(4)Number of potential dilutive shares 1,326,258rsk
505,100,000 yen

(detail)
Issuance of stock acquisition rights 5,100,960
Exercise of stock acquisition rights 500,000,000 ye

(5)Amount of proceeds

(6)Exercise price 377 yen
The stock option is allotted to the following pakty third-party
(7)Subscription or allotment allotment:
(Allotted party) Wiz Healthcare PE Series 1 Investment Limited LigbPartnership
50
The preceding terms of subscription are conditicpain
(8)Other notification of such terms coming into force in amtance with

the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act.

5. Other
(1)Changes in Officers
None to be reported.

(2)Other
None to be reported.
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